




VISION
To inspire the world.

MISSION
To provide a complete Mind, Body 
and Soul experience as the premier 
fashion and lifestyle retailer promoting 
sustainable and unparalleled levels of 
retail experience.

OUR VALUES
We love, we serve, we style, we 
innovate, we give,we save, we enjoy 
and we inspire
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Revenue Rs. Mn

Total Assets Rs. Mn

Total Equity Rs. Mn

Net Pro�t Rs. Mn

6,938

10,798
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Chairman’s
Review
It is with pleasure that I present the Annual 
Report of Odel PLC for the �nancial 
year ended 31st March, 2017. We 
continued to collaborate closely with 
many international brands and stylists to 
reinvigorate growth, increase pro�tability 
and deliver greater long-term, sustainable 
value to this fashion powerhouse. Odel 
is now a hallmark of premier quality, 
affordable fashion in Sri Lanka as it 
strives to deliver a compelling customer 
experience. 

The robust expansion of Odel continued 
during the year to mark yet another 
eventful period which, re�ected the shift 
to a seamless world in which consumer 
demand for fashion articles and home 
products became signi�cant with 
increasing brand partnerships and fresh 
styles as we continued to closely watch 
fashion trends.

We accomplished what we set out to 
do in the beginning of the year. Your 
Company marked yet another remarkable 
year of performance with a revenue of Rs. 
6.9 Billion, demonstrating 7.5% growth 
over the last year, when consumer demand 
was substantially affected by the slowing 

down of the economy. Pro�t Before Tax for 
Odel increased by 62.1% to Rs. 648.9 
Mn while Pro�t After Tax increased by 
81.7% to Rs. 464.9 Mn. Sustainable 
partnerships and disciplined expansion 
with the timely acquisition of top brands 
underpinned the growth momentum of 
Odel.

Economic Climate
Despite the challenging operating 
environment in the year under review, the 
underlying business performance for Odel 
saw optimism. 

The GoSL’s economic policy 
pronouncements during the year set key 
challenges to the retail industry in terms 
of higher interest rates and Value Added 
Tax (VAT) increase from 11% to 15%, 
which hampered the purchasing power of 
the consumers. Consequently, consumer 
con�dence dived gradually within the year 
as growth in consumer spending eroded 
during the year. 

Sri Lanka’s Gross Domestic Product 
(GDP) grew 5.3 % in the fourth quarter 
of 2016 but annual growth slowed to 
4.4% compared to the previous year, 
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denoting modest performance of the 
economy since 2013. The service sector 
grew by 4.2% compared to the previous 
year contributing a commendable 57% to 
the GDP. Service sector growth drivers -- 
wholesale and retail trade -- posted slower 
growth in 2016 than previous years when 
the slowing rates were compounded by 
absence of stimulus measures permitted in 
the Budget. Tourist arrivals in 2016 rose 
by 14% with a total count of 2 Mn tourists.

Challenging tax reforms compelled us to 
justi�ably increase prices in a gradual 
manner considering wallet strength. This 
coupled with the sharp rise in interest rates 
stymied margins. Defying all challenges, 
our �nancial strength demonstrated 
remarkable resilience through group 
synergies and a uni�ed vision. 

SUSTAINABLE 
PARTNERSHIPS 
AND DISCIPLINED 
EXPANSION WITH THE 
TIMELY ACQUISITION 
OF TOP BRANDS 
UNDERPINNED 
THE GROWTH 
MOMENTUM OF 
ODEL.
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Through ODEL’s Strategic Lenses
We had four seasonal trend-setting 
fashion launches during the year to refresh 
customers as they see more diversity of 
style emulating international standards. 
Investments in our retail businesses have 
borne fruit, creating products that people 
love, inspiring deep affection for our 
brands and thus contribute towards a 
diverse stream of earnings.

Our strategies for growth within this year 
included strategic brand acquisitions, 
and focus in creating compelling value 
proposition to the customers, which 
enabled us to maintain sound growth 
despite the slow progression of the 
economy. We have made signi�cant 
changes to our product line to be more 
consistent with lifestyle trends and 
demands from brand conscious customers 
seeking value for money. We also unveiled 
a distinctly ethnic ensemble themed 
Wanderlust with tribal-chic, ethnic colours, 
patterns and unique fabric textures. Our 
LUV SL brand provided testament of the 
growing demand for clothes that are made 
in Sri Lanka, and we are taking bold steps 
to help this signature brand thrive and 
thereby enhance it’s reach. 

While we embrace innovative fashion 
and product developments from a fashion 
portfolio like no other, emphasis in store 
expansion continued during the year. 
Odel relocated it’s Wattala branch to 
a much spacious location with ample 
parking. LuvSL opened it’s eighth store in 
the precincts of the Pinnawala Elephant 
Orphanage to capture high yielding 
tourist attraction points in the island. The 
opening of Promenade, the 16,000 
square feet of �ne dining and bar area, 

is a further step towards completing the 
gamut of the unique shopping experience 
at the Odel Flagship store. Recently, at the 
airport’s duty free shopping complex, we 
opened three shops – Galleria, Watch 
and Sunglass, and international luggage 
outlets.

We are on a journey, that requires us to 
be highly adaptable amidst unprecedented 
changes in the industry, with radically 
new shopping options, acquiring leading 
brands, fuelling national commitment to 
grow the potential income from foreign 
exchange income. 

What lends support to the future is how we 
engage the respective local authorities and 
leverage GOSL to ensure we as a nation 
become a major shopping destination. In 
achieving this goal, we provide insights to 
the authorities for certain tax advantages 
in order to offer competitive products of 
world class quality at suitable prices to 
scale down the number of locals travelling 
abroad for shopping, simultaneously 
creating an enticing shopping hub for 
tourists.

Preparing Odel for the future, we have 
embarked on yet another dynamic plan 
- the Odel Department Store Project to 
further consolidate our position as the 
leading fashion retailer in the country. 
This will be built in the adjacent area of 
the �agship store.  

A Sustainable Path Ahead
We see great opportunities to strengthen 
customer relationships, whether they 
are strolling through our stores, or using 
multiple touch points, all in the course of a 
single buying decision. 

WITH A ROBUST 
VISION AND 
OPTIMISTIC PLANS 
TO COMPLETE THE 
ODEL DEPARTMENT 
STORE  PROJECT BY 
THE YEAR 2020, WE 
WOULD CONTINUE 
TO ENHANCE 
PARTNERSHIPS 
WITH TOP-NOTCH 
INTERNATIONAL 
DESIGNER BRANDS 
AROUND THE 
WORLD AND 
REVOLUTIONIZE THE 
RETAIL LANDSCAPE 
OF THE COUNTRY. 

Chairman’s
Review
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We choose to remain close to our 
customers and this can only be realized 
through people, necessitating the need 
to have highly enthusiastic, dedicated 
and knowledgeable employees. We 
believe that in this technologically-driven 
shopping environment, investing in frontline 
employees gives life to our business 
strategy through creativity, commitment and 
collaboration.

We possess one of the best employee 
bases in the industry, starting from a 
fashion-minded buying team to the most 
supportive sales staff. Therein, we have 
substantially encouraged a performance-
driven culture; being committed to equality, 
diversity and inclusion. We adhere to 
careful recruitment to attract the best and 
continuously invest in staff training in 
service quality and up-to-date knowledge 
on our brands to foster a culture of 
international standards. 

Just as our people give us an incalculable 
advantage, so does the fact that we 
care about our enduring partnerships 
both locally and globally. With over 80 
partnerships having eminent international 
brands, Odel has strengthened its 
commitment to sustainability throughout its 
value chain. 

Sustaining our commercial progress and 
priorities, the promise is to do more than 
merely sell fashion. Community support 
initiatives spearheaded by Odel such as  
wild life protection, conservation of ancient 
historical sites, blood donations, disaster 
relief programs strive to create change in 
the Sri Lankan society as a good corporate 
citizen. 

Fast-forwarding the Future
Through experience we know how to get 
the right products and brands, catering to 
a set of customers who are increasingly 
pursuing experiences and products that 
reflect their personal image with authentic 
value. Odel, as the benchmark fashion 
retailer in the country, is geared to 
consistently deliver relevant products and 
services to meet the on-demand mindset 
of the modern fast-paced shopper and 
continue to grow its loyal customer base. 

With a robust vision and optimistic plans 
to complete the Odel Department Store 
Project by the year 2020, we would 
continue to enhance partnerships with top-
notch international designer brands around 
the world and revolutionize the retail 
landscape of the country. With another 
good year behind us, we set forth with a 
robust strategy and commitment to achieve 
our mission and win the global stage. 

A Note of Appreciation
I take this opportunity to thank my 
colleagues on the Board and the 
management teams of Odel and Softlogic 
Brands whose determination and optimism 
have brought forth our story of success 
as the market leader in fashion. I extend 
my sincere appreciation for the strategic 
guidance provided by our international 
brand partners and architects. I would also 
like to thank our shareholders for placing 
their utmost con�dence in the Company’s 
ability to deliver paramount value over the 
years. 

(Sgd.)

Ashok Pathirage
Chairman
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Board of
Directors

Dr Ruanthi De Silva
Non Executive Independent DirectorMr Haresh Kaimal

Non-Executive Director

Mr Ashok Pathirage
Chairman
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Mr Ashok Pathirage
Chairman

Mr Ashok Pathirage is the founding 
member and Chairman/Managing 
Director of Softlogic Group, a 
conglomerate consisting of over 45 
companies and 9000 employees. 
Commanding an aggregate turnover of 
over USD400 Mn, the dynamic group 
has established a substantial market 
share in six rapidly-growing sectors of the 
economy - Retail, Healthcare, Financial 
Services, ICT, Leisure and Automotive. 
Ashok Pathirage also functions as 
Chairman/Managing Director of the Asiri 
hospital chain, Softlogic Capital PLC, 
Softlogic Life Insurance PLC and Odel 
PLC, which are all listed public companies 
on the Colombo Stock Exchange. He is 
also the Deputy Chairman of National 
Development Bank PLC and the Chairman 
of NDB Capital Holdings Limited.

Mr Ranil Prasad Pathirana
Non-Executive Independent Director

Dr Sivakumar Selliah
Non-Executive Independent 

Director
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Board of Directors
Dr Ruanthi De Silva 
Non Executive Independent Director

Director and Consultant of SCM- Plus, 
providing consultancy services on Finance, 
Logistics, Best Practices in Procurement 
and process restructuring, in international 
markets. 

She was the Group Director of Supply 
Chan Management (SCM ) at Bernhard 
Schulte Ship Management (BSM) Group 
which manages over 650 ships operating 
from over 23 of�ces around the world.

She carries over 40 years of local and 
international experience with blue-chip 
companies and have been in senior 
management positions covering strategic 
planning, �nance, business process re-
engineering and operations. 

Dr De Silva holds a Doctorate from the 
University of Newcastle in Australia and 
an MBA from the University of Hull in 
UK. She is a Fellow of the Chartered 
Institute of Management Accountants of 
UK. She is also an Associate Member 
of the Chartered Institute of Logistics and 
Transport in Australia.

Dr De Silva was the recipient of the 
2015 Personality of the Year for Service 
in the International Arena of the Maritime 
Industry, awarded by The Women in 
International Shipping and Trading 
Association (WISTA) Sri Lanka Branch.

Mr Ranil Prasad Pathirana
Non-Executive Director

Mr Pathirana is the Finance Director of the 
Hirdaramani Group and is a Director of 
Hirdaramani Apparel Holdings (Private) 
Limited, Hirdaramani Leisure Holdings 
(Private) Limited and Hirdaramani 
Investments Holding (Private) Limited 
which are the holding companies of 
the Hirdaramani Group. He is a Non-
Executive Director of Sampath Bank PLC, 
Alumex PLC , Taprobane Holdings PLC , 
Ceylon Hotels Corporation PLC.

Mr Pathirana is a Fellow Member of 
the Chartered Institute of Management 
Accountants, UK (FCMA - UK) and holds 
a Bachelor of Commerce Degree from the 
University of Sri Jayewardenepura.

Dr Sivakumar Selliah
Non-Executive Independent Director 

Dr Selliah holds a MBBS degree and 
a Masters Degree (M.Phil). He was 
appointed to the board of Odel PLC 
in 2014. He has over two decades of 
experience in varied �elds. He currently 
is the Deputy Chairman of Asiri Hospitals 
Holdings PLC, Asiri Surgical Hospital PLC 
and Central Hospital Ltd. He is a Director 
of Softlogic Holdings PLC, HNB Assurance 
PLC, Lanka Walltiles PLC, Lanka Tiles PLC, 
Horana Plantations PLC, ACL Cables PLC 
,Lanka Ceramics PLC, Swisstek (ceylon) 
PLC and Swisstek Aluminium Private Ltd., 
He is also the Chairman of JAT Holdings 
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(Pvt) Ltd, Cleanco Lanka (Pvt) Ltd and 
Vydexa ( Lanka) Power Corporation (Pvt) 
Ltd,. Dr Selliah serves on the Remuneration 
committee, Audit Committee, Investment 
committee , strategic planning committee 
and related party transaction committee of 
some of the companies on whose Board 
he serves.

Mr Haresh Kaimal
Non-Executive Director

Mr Haresh Kaimal is a co-founder of 
Softlogic and a Director since its inception. 
With over 25 years of experience in 
IT and operations, he currently heads 
the IT division of the Group to drive 
advancements in Information Technology 
and Enterprise Resource Management 
within Softlogic. He is also a Director of 
Softlogic BPO Services (Pvt) Ltd.



16 ODEL PLC|Annual Report 2016/17

Senior
Management 
Team
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Left to Right

Aldrin Gamage
General Manager- Visual Merchandising & Retail Design

Gopika Mageswaran
Business Controller

S L R Piyal
Senior Manager – Finance Operations & Compliance

G. Natarajan
Head - Retail Operation & Business Development

Desiree Karunaratne
Softlogic Group Director - Marketing

Romesh Jayewardene
Head of Projects & Mall Development
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Left to Right

Suren Perera
Head of Human Capital - Retail Sector

Meneka Galgamuwa
Head- Corporate Planning

Nalaka Rambukpota
General Manager - Corporate Operations

Thilina Dassanayake
Head of Buying

Vishaka Tennakoon
Head of Internal Audit - Retail Sector

Charlene Thuring
Head of Design
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Senior
Management 
Team
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Operational 
Review

The fashion retail sector in the country as a whole came under 
pressure as a result of the deceleration in consumer cash �ow 
during the 2016/17 �nancial year, which in turn impacted 
consumer buying patterns adversely. The industry on the whole 
achieved lesser growth than expected as a result of restricted 
disposable incomes. Despite the broader challenges facing 
the economy, Odel was able to derive signi�cant value from 
signi�cant shifts in consumer behavior, which dovetailed with the 
branded segment of the business, thus proving to be advantageous 
for the company’s �nancial growth. 

There was clear evidence of local consumers migrating to branded 
goods during the year. As a result of this paradigm shift, our 
branded segment performed well. There is an apparent desire 
amongst local consumers to purchase aspirational brands, which 
translated into higher sales amongst the branded segment of our 
business. As a result, Odel’s branded goods segment witnessed 
strident growth during 2016/17. 

The Softlogic Branded Apparel Division together with Odel have 
each, in their own right, pioneered brand consciousness and 
lifestyle brands amongst the local populace and the results of that 
far-sighted effort is now being increasingly seen. Consumers are 
clearly knowledgeable about brands and are becoming quality 
conscious. Apart from elevating local consumers onto the branded 
goods platform, tourists, who make up a signi�cant proportion of 
our shopper base, were eager to purchase brands at Odel, as 
some of our branded products are more reasonably priced when 
compared with the pricing structure for the same brands in some 
overseas markets.  

THE INDUSTRY ON THE WHOLE 

ACHIEVED LESSER GROWTH THAN 

EXPECTED AS A RESULT OF RESTRICTED 

DISPOSABLE INCOMES. DESPITE THE 

BROADER CHALLENGES FACING THE 

ECONOMY, ODEL WAS ABLE TO DERIVE 

SIGNIFICANT VALUE FROM SIGNIFICANT 

SHIFTS IN CONSUMER BEHAVIOR, 

WHICH DOVETAILED WITH THE 

BRANDED SEGMENT OF THE BUSINESS, 

THUS PROVING TO BE ADVANTAGEOUS 

FOR THE COMPANY’S FINANCIAL 

GROWTH. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS



Flagship Store
The Odel Flagship Store continued to 
attract greater footfalls through the year. 
The store’s seasonal collections are eagerly 
anticipated and the 2016/17 �nancial 
year was no different. Odel rose to 
exceed customers’ expectations yet again 
by launching some scintillating seasonal 
collections that delighted shoppers. 

One of the attractions at the store during 
the year was the launch of the Christmas 
campaign, which proved to be a great 
success in terms of generating exceptional 
sales volumes. In a departure from our 
normal practice to showcase the complete 
Christmas collection only at the �agship 
store, we carried a larger Christmas 
collection at all our other Odel outlets as 
well, which was well received and added 
to the success of the collection.

The Christmas ‘Fa la la collection’ was 
launched with a big bang, comprising of a 
scintillating and glamourous launch fashion 
show, integrated media campaign and 
complete store make-over - transforming 
Odel �agship store to re�ect the Christmas 
spirit. This captured the imagination of 
shoppers and heightened the joyous 
holiday mood whilst heralding the season. 

THE ODEL FLAGSHIP 

STORE CONTINUED 

TO ATTRACT 

GREATER FOOTFALLS 

THROUGH THE YEAR.

Fashion shows held at the �agship store 
attract a wide bevy of shoppers, and 
during 2016/17 as well, Odel held 
exclusive fashion shows to launch its 
seasonal collections. The ‘That Fa la 
la Feeling Fashion Show’ was held at 
the �agship store to launch the highly-
anticipated Christmas collection. Taking 
place at the newly-opened Promenade 
at Odel, the Christmas fashion show truly 
encompassed the spirit of Christmas. 
Sporting sequins, glitter, and a lot of 
seasonal glamour, models interweaved 
through the Promenade, making for a truly 
magical spectacle. 

‘The Rainforest Fashion Show’ was held at 
the store to launch the summer collection. 
Mirroring elements of Odel’s summer 
theme, the fashion show showcased key 
pieces from the collection. The ramp 
and backdrop featured lush, tropical 
foliage and culminated in a vibrant drum 
performance. 

Meanwhile, as the most coveted retail 
space in the country, the Odel �agship 
store welcomed new tenants during the 
year. Zam Gems, Woodlands, Crocs and 
Canterbury were new additions during the 
year. The present Blendhouse, renamed 
‘Blend’, which caters across a gourmet 

tea selection, has been expanded to usher 
in a wider variety of tea brands offering 
customers a more expansive choice. 
Similarly, Odel Delight, the gourmet 
goodies department, has been relocated 
alongside Blend – showcasing a bigger 
mix of goodies and providing foodies with 
a larger area to shop from. 

The newly opened F&B dining area, 
Promenade, which was launched in 
November 2016 was extremely well 
received and is generating considerable 
revenue. The food and beverage offering 
at The Promenade caters to wide customer 
tastes, with the ‘Alexandra & Ward’ 
fashion-themed café offering Italian 
cuisine as well as Japanese dishes from 
‘Nihonbashi’; the ‘Sugar Bistro & Bar’ 
with its American and Continental menus; 
and other tenant outlets ‘Bubble Tea’, ‘Il 
Gelato’, ‘Roots’, ‘Mango Tree’, ‘Chariot’, 
‘Hot Dog/Chop Shop’, ‘Sea Food Shack’ 
and ‘Magic Corn’ providing an eclectic 
mix of refreshments. Promenade is open 
till midnight, long after the Odel store has 
closed, offering shoppers and diners the 
�exibility to linger on in the aesthetically 
pleasing atmosphere, complete with 
lounge music and live band performances 
on weekends. 
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International Brands 
Odel is witnessing decisive growth in 
the sales of its branded collection. The 
upmarket Spanish retailer Mango claimed 
a signi�cant space within the Ladies 
department at Odel during the year. This 
encapsulates and propels the ideology that 
Odel is Sri Lanka’s number one department 
store, housing a range of reputed brands. 
Mango has done far better than our 
projections, which has inspired us to 
introduce more international labels to 
Odel, such as Lee and Wrangler.

World-famous for durable and stylish 
denim jeans, Lee was introduced to Odel 
in August 2016, further strengthening the 
denim offering at the store. It has since 
been very well received by customers in 
store. 

A hallmark of rugged wear, Wrangler is a 
brand synonymous with rough active wear 
and was introduced into Odel in August 
2016. 

Reputed as an immensely popular watch 
and accessory brand, Fossil opened 
its �rst shop-in-shop experience at Odel 
Alexandra Place at Christmas, located in 
the shoes and bags department. Featuring 
an assortment of bags, belts and watches, 
Fossil has since witnessed unprecedented 
customer attention and is a brand that 
encompasses versatility and urban fashion.

The �agship store’s Watch Station was 
further enhanced during the year with the 
addition of Marc Jacobs, renowned for 
being at the top of the high-fashion realm 
and the absolute epitome of exclusivity.                                          

Levis, Pepe and Allen Solly collections 
were rolled out to other locations and 
currently 6 Odel outlets are carrying 
international brand collections to offer 
customers easier access to top branded 
goods. The growth of Levi’s, Mothercare 
and Nike brands re�ected promising 
growth in outer locations of Odel outlets. 
A standalone Peter England store was also 
opened during the year.

The eye-wear department at Odel is 
already home to a massive assortment of 
globally renowned brands. Last year, a 
range of new high pro�le brands were 
introduced to complement Odel’s growing 
list of elite names such as Coach, Burberry 
and Miu Miu.

Odel’s luggage department too has 
been steadily growing over the years, 
showcasing brands that emphasize quality 
and durability. As such, in November 
last year, Odel introduced luggage by 
National Geography, Wild Craft, High 
Sierra and Kamilant, further strengthening 
its line-up.

Private Brands
Odel’s private labels continue to enjoy 
high levels of patronage from customers. 
We are committed to infusing new life 
into the private brands by periodically 
introducing fresh products and designs. 
The success of our Luv SL brand especially 
amongst tourists inspired us to open a Luv 
SL store at Pinnawela, which is a popular 
tourist destination. 

Visual Merchandising
Odel has sustained its visual display 
to international standards and remains 
committed to enhancing the overall 
ambience of the Odel �agship and other 
outlets. The merchandising team associates 
closely with the brand principals to remain 
abreast of future fashion trends, usually 
a year-and-a-half ahead of the actual 
launch of the collection. Odel is further 
strengthened by an experienced team of 
in-house designers who are highly skilled 
in forecasting fashion and fabric trends 
as a hard core fashion brand. This is a 
clear asset for the brand as it reinforces 
its unmatched design and operational 
strength. 

Marketing
In keeping with its yearly trend to launch 
seasonal collections in tune with global 
fashion trends, this year too Odel launched 
spectacular seasonal collections that 
re�ected colours and styles that were a 
breath of fresh air in the country’s fashion 
retail space, thus upgrading fashion overall 
and what customers have come to expect 
of Odel.  

Operational Review
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Collection (Summer ’16)

The Rainforest themed Summer Collection 
sizzled in tropical colours and bold 
rainforest motifs, evoking the vibrancy of 
summer. This collection was high fashion 
yet highly wearable and most suited to the 
warm weather conditions of the paradise 
island. Furthermore, the collection exuded 
the right combination of lounge and 
beach wear, while elevating the exotic 
quotient for the wearer. Tropical prints 
of palm trees, monstera leaves, banana 
leaves in Martinique design and tropical 
�owers made their presence felt in the 
collection. The collection had colors 
of green, red, yellow, black, blue and 
white with shades of slate, mushroom, 
gingerbread, amber, corn�ower, citron, 
deep cranberry, pigment green, earth 
brown and salamander, combining the 
brilliant colours of nature and the earthy 
tones of the tropics. Furthermore, the 
collection comprised of an extensive 
range of off-shoulder maxi dresses, printed 
culottes, cold shoulder crop tops, printed 
tops, skirts and pants, tropical leaf printed 
shirts, T shirts and much more. Overall, the 
‘Rainforest’ theme collection transformed 
the store into a veritable tropical paradise, 
re�ecting vibrant colours of a Brazilian 
rainforest.

New Collections
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Operational Review
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Fall ’16

Timeless elegance was the hallmark of the 
‘Modern Medieval’ Fall ‘16 Collection 
which featured a range of fabrics such 
as chiffon, textured silk, velvet, pleated, 
cotton, crepe, viscose, lace and sheer 
looks. The throwback collection re�ected 
the majesty of medieval fashion translated 
into wearable fashion. The prints placed 
emphasis on dark and gloomy �orals 
and tapestry designs to produce a rich 
ceremonial medieval look, with a colour 
palette of black, shades of dark blue, 
mixture of dark red, soft shades of blue, 
peach, pink and ivory and hints of gold 
and purple. Silhouette detailing with neck 
ties, royal buttons, royal sleeve patterns, 
Peter Pan collars and chest embroidery 
added panache. Period attire is being 
increasingly adopted to make a distinctive 
style statement and this collection offered 
a range of classic collectibles for delighted 
shoppers. The Collection included darker 
elements in keeping with international 
style �les but the enthusiastic manner in 
which it was embraced indicates that our 
shopper pro�le is quite open and receptive 
to try out new fashion concepts which are 
trending globally.  
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Xmas ’16

Odel’s ‘Fa La La Feeling’ Xmas Collection 
was a runaway success as it combined 
holiday cheer and a festive mood in 
a unique manner. The holiday season is 
a special time of the year when everyone 
wants to put their best foot forward and 
the ‘Fa La La Feeling’ Collection offered 
a diverse collection of formal and informal 
essentials to make the festive season extra 
special. The collection comprised of two 
distinct elements, a casual mix of clothing 
for both men and women showcasing 
designs mixed with nudes, whites and 
shades of soft pink on the one hand, and 
a selection of glamorous evening and 
occasion wear in the same colour shades 
but with sparkling embellishments created 
with pearl work, lace, net, sequins, 
metallic, fur, snow�akes and Swarovski 
stone work. The wide colour palette of the 
collection encompassed the sherbet tones, 
hints of blush, grown up rose gold, nude 
and white that represented elegance and 
glamour, together with shades of burgundy, 
red, black, silver and gold that evoked the 
festivity of the season. The collection used 
distinguishing features like turtle necks, 
neck detailing, thigh high slits, wraps, 
plunging necklines, peter pan collars, cold 
shoulders and bow ties to emphasise its 
celebratory nature. 
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Spring ’17

The evergreen and year-round favourite 
denim played a starring role in Odel’s 
‘Denim & Co.’. A global favourite, denim 
offers swag and elegance according to 
the occasion and this versatile nature of 
the fabric was showcased abundantly in 
Denim & Co’s Spring Collection which 
featured a range of compatible and 
complementary fabrics such as linen, 
chambray, viscose, single jersey, lite-stretch 
cotton, French terry, crepe, and chiffon. 
Creations in denim of multiple �nishes and 
degrees of distress formed the core of the 
energetic new collection, supplementing 
Odel’s extensive offering from brands such 
as Levi’s, Pepe Jeans London, Wrangler 
and Lee, as well as other denim and 
indigo items on the shelves of the country’s 
premier high fashion retail chain.
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Promotions
As a fashion lifestyle brand, Odel has become a hub for all fashion 
lovers and the company strengthens its bond with customers further by 
conducting a diverse range of fun promotions for special occasions.

Luv Avurudu Gama 2016 
This promotion was held at the Odel �agship store to celebrate the local 
essence of Avurudu. In order to bring out the ethos of the occasion, an 
entire authentic Sri Lankan village was set up on the premises. Along with 
showcasing traditional sweets, clothes and cultural products, customers 
were also given the opportunity to experience traditional activities 
that make Avurudu a memorable festival. The mood was fun-�lled and 
infectious and Odel’s loyal customers appreciated the effort that the 
company went to be inclusive by recreating an authentic Sri Lankan 
Avurudu celebration just as in the villages.

Easter 2016 HippityHoppity Fiesta 

This promotion dived into the true spirit of Easter by conducting an entire 
weekend of fun activities and exciting games on the 26th and 27th of 
March 2016. Over 80 kids took part in the HippityHoppity Easter Fiesta 
over the course of the weekend, with many staying for the duration of the 
whole event which took place at the Odel car park between 2PM and 6 
PM. A host of traditional party games were held at 30 minute intervals. 
The children had the time of their lives, along with parents who were 
cheering them on!

Mother’s Day 2016 
Themed ‘Momspiration’, Odel celebrated Mother’s Day with a special 
campaign that showcased a range of exquisite gift ideas speci�cally 
catered towards mothers. Odel showcases a wide range of items moms 
would love and is the preferred destination for Mother’s Day gifts.

Father’s Day 2016 

Father’s Day themed ‘Top Dad’ promotion was commemorated with 
an interactive activity for kids who visited the store. Kids were invited 
to create their own Father’s Day cards using stickers and other craft 
materials.



30 ODEL PLC|Annual Report 2016/17

World Environment day - LUV Sigiriya

A large social movement aimed at ridding Sri Lanka’s very own UNESCO site of 
plastic was executed, wherein Odel staff and volunteers cleaned the Sigiriya rock. 
Meanwhile, at the store level, t-shirts and other paraphernalia were created to raise 
awareness to the cause. Odel has always been an environmentally-friendly brand 
and has leveraged on its popularity and in�uence to drive home messages about 
preserving the �ora and fauna of the island.

World Animal Day 2016 - LUV Harmony

With the aim of raising awareness about the human-elephant con�ict in Sri Lanka, 
a series of products along with a campaign was created and executed. Many of 
Odel’s products such as t-shorts, caps and souvenirs promote the wildlife of Sri Lanka. 

Valentine’s Day 2016 - Ignite the Love Bomb!

A grand prize of two return tickets to Malé was the highlight of Odel’s ‘Ignite the Love 
Bomb’ promotion. Shoppers who made purchases for Rs. 5,000 or more between 
5th and 14th February 2016 at Odel’s �agship store were eligible to participate 
in the promotion. Five other couples also enjoyed an extension of the essence of 
Valentine’s Day with weekend getaways at the Centara Ceysands Resort & Spa. 
Odel Loyalty Cards who quali�ed for the draw over the Valentine’s Day weekend 
were provided an opportunity to play a game of ‘Love Roulette’ at which they won 
instant prizes of gift vouchers, soft toys, cupcakes and loyalty points.

Bene�ts for loyalty card holders

Double points promo weekend 

In order to boost sales during the month of May, which is generally considered a lull 
period, double points were awarded to customers who shopped during the month. 

Flash Sale 

End of Season Sale (EOSS)’s �rst day was dedicated to loyalty customers, which 
allowed them to get the �rst glimpse of the products at a good price before the 
general public. Held in July 2016, these special �ash sales offer exclusivity to Odel’s 
loyalty customers. 

Loyalty “We Love you back” Campaign 

To create loyalty presence on social media, an interactive campaign was initiated to 
encourage shoppers to take sel�es each time they visited an Odel store along with 
their loyalty card. The picture with the most number of likes was entitled to free bonus 
points during the September promotion.

Operational Review
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“Be the ONE” Campaign

This campaign was conducted in October to entice non- loyalty customers to join the Odel 
loyalty programme. The campaign depicted the loyalty bene�ts and privileges, and helped 
portray the card to be the one to have.

•	 Top members were invited to Promenade to view the Xmas Collection launch as 
special guests. 

•	 Loyalty 5th Year Anniversary 

 The “Loyalty is LOVE, Love is YOU” promotion celebrated the �fth anniversary of 
the scheme by offering special chocolate packs to all walk-in customers, pinwheel 
souvenirs for kids and an appreciation cake sent to all stores. Odel Delights in giving 
back to its loyalty customers and this was yet another way to remind loyalty customers 
how valuable they are to Odel.

•	 ‘Spot the Tag’

  Shoppers at the �agship store were treated to this special surprise. Items from all 
departments were hidden across the store waiting to be found. The customers who 
came across these hidden goods took them home for FREE!

• ‘Loyalty Jackpot’ 

 Members who spent a minimum of Rs.5,000/- stood a chance to spin the Loyalty 
jackpot wheel and win amazing prizes such as gift vouchers from Odel, special 
souvenirs from Luv SL, cupcakes from Delight, Burger King vouchers (Meal for 2), 
BodyShop gift pack, Zam Gems jewellery, FootRub vouchers, Exclusive Lines gift and 
100 loyalty points!

Loyalty Card Bene�ts

Other bene�ts enjoyed by loyalty card members during the year were:

•	 1	point	for	every	100/-	spent	(	1	point	is	equivalent	to	Rs.1/-)

•	 10%	discount	during	the	birthday	month

•	 Exclusive	promotions	and	sales

•	 Exclusive	invites	to	launches	and	special	occasions

•	 Xmas	gift	hamper	to	the	top	loyalty	members	of	the	year

Clean Up Initiative on World 
Environment Day
Aligned with its annual tradition to mark 
World Environment Day in a meaningful 
manner, ODEL launched the ‘LUV Sigiriya’ 
campaign at the historic site to clean up 
litter left behind by visitors. An alarming 
amount of litter is left behind each day 
at this historic site. In the Clean Up 
initiative, over 40 sacks of rubbish were 
collected and taken away from Lion Rock 
by the Odel Clean Up team consisting 
of more than 100 volunteers including 
16 children from a nearby school. The 
61-strong team from ODEL scoured the 
precincts of the �fth century rock fortress, 
collecting plastic bottles, polythene 
bags, lunch wraps and similar detritus 
abandoned at this UNESCO World 
Heritage Site. Recognising the need to 
go beyond picking up litter to create 
greater awareness of the need to protect 
this iconic historical and archaeological 
landmark, ODEL’s LUV SL brand also 
launched a special collection of themed 
clothing and accessories with messaging 
on preserving the glory of Sigiriya. As the 
ODEL team was busy hauling down 40 
sacks of garbage from the 660 foot rock 
on 5th June 2016 – World Environment 
Day, visitors to ODEL’s �agship store at 
Alexandra Place were greeted by an 
eye-catching display in the store’s Atrium 
Lobby depicting the litter usually found at 
the site. The LUV Sigiriya collection created 
in support of the cause comprises of T 
shirts, bio-degradable bags, badges and 
other accessories with slogans against the 
pollution of the location, which attracts an 
average of 2,500 visitors a day. ODEL 
and the LUV SL are playing a proactive 
role in drawing public attention to the 
problem and promoting greater civic 
consciousness.



Odel Department Store 
The year under review witnessed rapid 
progress towards the development of the 
640,000 sq ft mega Odel Department 
Store , which will usher in a new concept 
in retail, lifestyle, gastronomy and living. 
A highly eco-friendly and sustainable 
project, the design will re�ect lush green 
protuberances, sky gardens and pools to 
render it a magical place. Conceptualized 
by a German architect, the design is a 
departure from standard malls and instead 
embraces modern, minimalist style where 
fashion lifestyles are better displayed. 
The futuristic design re�ects a fusion of 
advanced technology and sustainable 
design for modern millennials. The Odel 
Department Store  will house the world’s 

THE ODEL DEPARTMENT STORE  HAS 

BEEN CONCEPTUALIZED AS AN ALL-DAY 

RECREATIONAL HUB, WHICH WILL PROVIDE 

UNLIMITED OPTIONS FOR FAMILIES TO ENGAGE 

IN THEIR OWN PREFERRED PURSUITS. THE 

ODEL DEPARTMENT STORE  WILL ALSO SEE THE 

INFUSION OF ALL BRANDS FROM THE PARENT 

GROUP, SOFTLOGIC HOLDINGS.

ODEL DEPARTMENT STORE 
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best-known brands and Odel will earn 
a portion of all revenues generated by 
tenants renting retail space at Odel 
Department Store.

The project will include 39 exclusive 
limited edition condominiums, two �oors 
of multiplex cinema screens and parking 
for 550 vehicles. The villas will each have 
a sky garden and be unique in design. 
Unlike other mixed development projects, 
the limited number of villa-like apartments 
will ensure that exclusivity for both the mall 
and the residents will be respected. 

The Odel Department Store  has been 
conceptualized as an all-day recreational 
hub, which will provide unlimited options 
for families to engage in their own 
preferred pursuits. The Odel Department 
Store  will also see the infusion of all 
brands from the parent group, Softlogic 
Holdings. This fabulous synergy will give 
further impetus to a group-wide loyalty 
programme to empower customers to 

earn points across lifestyle purchases. 
The wide range of products and services 
at the mall will enable loyalty customers 
to earn and burn points with ease. The 
concept has excited international retailers 
and many brands are already onboard as 
new tenants at the Odel Department Store 
when it opens. 

The groundbreaking ceremony of the Odel 
Department Store  will be undertaken in 
2017. The main piling work is scheduled 
to commence and the mall is expected to 
be completed in 2020. 

Future
The retail industry is a barometer of the 
state of the economy, and we believe that 
once the economic investment friendly 
policies are in place, the retail industry 
will accelerate. The future is very bright 
and this is evidenced by the USD 100 
million investment that the Softlogic 
Group is making in constructing the Odel 

Department Store , which will be the 
largest and most prestigious upmarket mall 
and the most comprehensive lifestyle hub in 
the country. In the meantime, an additional 
10,000 sq ft of retail space will be added 
to the current �agship store by September 
this year to sustain and grow revenue 
generation. We are also exploring 
opportunities to expand Odel to strategic 
towns and cities in the near future. The 
Odel Department Store  will strengthen 
the Odel brand equity by miles and offer 
�rst-mover advantage as economic growth 
in the country accelerates. Moreover, the 
Odel Department Store  will also be a 
precursor for others in the industry to think 
big and follow suit to make Sri Lanka a 
shopping and recreation hub in the region.
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Human Resources

Our People
Although Odel is reputed as an iconic 
high fashion retail chain, it is also a centre 
of excellence because of the quality of 
its people and processes. The intensive 
people-centric nature of the business has 
inspired us to ensure that our teams are 
groomed to create high value relationships 
with partners, suppliers, customers, and 
other stakeholders. What unites every 
single employee at Odel, across various 
departments, is a passion for fashion and 
strong shared values. This shared love 
for the business is what has given rise to 
dynamism and agility that Odel is known 
for. 

The company is reaping the positive 
bene�ts of the extensive streamlining and 
aligning of its systems and processes to 
that of Softlogic Group, which was a 
complex exercise and conducted with 
great sensitivity over the last couple of 
years. A new policy manual was brought 
out in the previous year to re�ect the 
renewed ethos, which has promoted a 
wider understanding of our plans and 
priorities, thereby giving rise to a high 
performance culture. 

During 2016/17, the company’s Human 
Resources operation steadily enhanced its 
model such that it is an equal partner in 
the business by expertly managing the key 
asset of the company – its people

Our values have helped create an open, 
equal and dynamic work culture which 
lends the company the rare vibrancy 
seen in few organizations, where all 
the employees work in tandem to reach 
shared goals.

The HR team in conjunction with the senior 
management has rolled out industry-
best systems and processes to ensure 
employees are supported strongly by 
company policies and an empowering 
work culture to focus on building the 
business. Our new policies are aimed 
at encouraging employees to take the 
initiative on their own and be proactive 
about building relationships. More 
importantly, Odel symbolizes a streamlined 
operation headed by industry-best talent 
in their respective areas of expertise. We 
now have the right people at the right 
place and we are putting into action our 
strategic plans aggressively to pursue the 
level of excellence that we aim to reach. 

A profound milestone that the company 
has achieved is exceptional gender 
equality, as it can lay claim to having 44% 
of women at senior decision-making levels 
across the organization, proving that at 
Odel there is no discrimination on any 
grounds when it comes to talented people 
achieving exceptional career growth. We 
are pleased to have put our workplace 
equality belief into practice. 

During the year under review, Odel 
continued to enhance its employee welfare 
policies to take a more partnering role 
with associates. Greater partnering with 
the Softlogic team across various initiatives 
has helped drive understanding and 
appreciation for diverse job roles that 
exist across the company and group as a 
whole.

HR Vision

“To be recognized as the most 
trusted dynamic resource and 

business partner in supporting the 
company objectives whilst ensuring 

the well-being of its staff. “

HR Mission

“We recruit, develop and retain 
a high performing and diverse 

workforce and maintain a healthy, 
safe, and productive work 

environment for employees, in 
order to maximize individual and 
organizational potential, to be the 

best in the business”
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Training & Development
Odel extends an unmatched shopping 
experience through its brands, collections, 
display and exclusive ambience. Yet 
another crucial aspect of the mix is 
customer service, which is why Training 
and Development forms the pivot on which 
we enhance our service offering and 
support our employees to develop and 
reach their full potential. 

The objective of all Training and 
Development activity is to provide 
employees with skills and experience to 
win in the marketplace. This is achieved 
through a strategic balance of regular 
in-house training and external training 
provided by international brands. Our 
annual appraisal review also helps 
us chart out a speci�c training and 
enrichment plan for employees.

There was signi�cant emphasis on 
Performance Management during the 
period under review and employees 
were engaged in this initiative by holding 
a series of awareness sessions, so that 
the entire team moves as one to achieve 
organizational objectives.

Our association with international brands 
and the training they provide key sales 
team members is shared with the rest of 
the sales staff, thus improving service 
standards across the enterprise. Regular 
product training for international brands 
was conducted for selected staff so that 
customers can experience the international 
feel of the service offering when shopping 
for world reputed brands at Odel.

This new ethos has inspired us to inculcate 
and encourage a more customer service 
mindset by holding a series of back-to-back 
‘Service Champs Programs’ covering all 

employees including sales staff. Providing 
employees the necessary tools to succeed 
in their sales pro�les has energized 
the team and supporting rewards and 
recognition policies have helped enhance 
employee focus on championing customer 
service. During 2016/17, the company 
ful�lled training hours amounting to 8,294 
hours for its employees.

Further, ongoing orientations were held 
through the year for routine training and to 
welcome new recruits and to familiarize 
them with the business. Our novel talent 
recruitment and management processes 
ensure we hire for experience and attitude 
to ensure the right �t.

In an effort to sustain the momentum of 
communication between the organization 
and employees, an HR Open Day 
were held during the year, to facilitate 
employees to reach out to HR staff and 
discuss any concerns they may have, 
offer suggestions, or even to report 
grievances. These sessions prove valuable 
for the organization because they rightly 
denote a measure of being appreciated 
as far as employees are concerned. 
Grievance handling is dealt with utmost 
seriousness and a mechanism is in place 
for employees to approach the grievance 
committee without inhibitions while being 
assured of con�dentiality and a fair 
outcome.

Yet another employee engagement 
initiative, the employee focus groups, have 
become fertile platforms for brainstorming, 
discussions, debates and suggestions on 
how to achieve organizational goals. 
These lively sessions most often give 
rise to innovative suggestions and ideas 
from employees, the merits of which are 
weighed and necessary action taken.
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Odel also promotes a culture of 
encouraging feedback from all 
stakeholders to help the organization 
review its policies to better suit the needs 
of those stakeholders.  

Recognition and Rewards
At Odel, the continually honed recognition 
and reward program helps underscore 
company values and boosts morale of 
the staff. We do this to boost individual 
performance while at the same time 
highlighting the level of cooperation 
and teamwork necessary to sustain the 
organization’s growth momentum and 
service levels. Acknowledging and 
reinforcing the accomplishments of our 
employees helps foster a dynamic culture 
where employees are motivated to strive 
towards company goals and objectives.

The company has effective programs in 
place such as long service staff recognition 
awards, Best Sales Personality of the Year 
and Sales Supervisor of the Year awards. 
These awards are presented at the ‘Annual 
Awards Night’ which is an eagerly 
anticipated event for the company. Every 
month, best performing sales personalities 
are commended and their photograph 
displayed internally in the company. At 
the end of the year accomplishments 
of monthly winners are considered and 
Best Sales Personality of the Year and 
Sales Supervisor of the Year awards 
bestowed. At this event, longstanding 
staff is felicitated and their achievement 
loyalty, dedication and commitments is 
appreciated. 

One of Odel’s most important segments 
of its value chain is the Distribution Center 
operation. This high value operation 
is managed by 200 staff tasked with 
warehousing and distribution and this 
link in the chain is of critical importance 
to ensuring seamless operations. During 
the year under review, we focused the 
spotlight on this segment of the operation 
by selecting 3 best employees from 
this segment on a monthly basis so that 
they too could participate in the annual 
awards. 

The company also has in place an on-
the-spot rewarding system. ‘Way to Go’ 
cards are handed to employees showing 
exceptional commitment and to encourage 
and recognize those who go out of their 
way to execute their daily duties. This 
enables senior management to applaud 
staff for exceptional actions there and 
then for greater impact, thereby triggering                                                                                                        
a culture of positive action. The ‘Way 
to Go Card’ is accompanied by a 
gift voucher. We have found that such 
on-the-spot recognition inspires ongoing 
motivation and high performance.

Operational Review
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Employee Well-Being 
The company regularly assesses its 
employee welfare policies to ensure that 
they receive bene�ts they value and which 
in turn motivates them further. During 
2016/17, the following activities were 
implemented to enhance staff engagement:

•	The	contribution	by	minor	staff	in	the	
Company is valued and appreciated by 
supporting their children’s education by 
donating school shoes and stationery for the 
school year.

•	Apart	from	numerous	cultural	and	
recreational gatherings, Odel encourages 
its employees to participate and excel in 
sports. The company’s Welfare Society 
organized a ODEL Premier League (OPL) 
Cricket Tournament, with the participation of 
all departments including management. This 
event encourages boding and teamwork 
and helps fellowship amongst employees. In 
addition, a papare band raised enjoyment 
levels of the game even further as the teams 
battled it out in the cricket matches. 

•	Odel	employees	have	teamed	up	with	
Softlogic Group team members to 
participate in several mercantile tournaments 
across the sports of hockey, swimming, 
badminton and cricket, enabling staff to 
showcase their talent out of the workplace. 
The Odel cricket team performed well at the 
Mercantile Cricket Tournament. 

•	The	Death	Donation	Society	plays	a	
crucial role during times of bereavement 
for employees. The main purpose of the 
Death Donation Society is to provide urgent 
to staff who experience a death in their 
family. There were 20 death donations done 
during the year under review, which totaled 
Rs. 880,000/=.This provides immediate 
�nancial relief and eases tension for the 
family in their time of grief.

•	Employees	are	eligible	for	personal	and	
medical insurance, which provides a 
safety net for their families and them. The 
Company strives to provide competitive 
salaries and remuneration coupled with 
training opportunities to enable career 
progression and career growth.

•	To	commemorate	World’s	Aids	Day	on	1st	
December 2016, various activities were 
conducted in addition to an awareness 
session, partnering with Grassroots 
Foundation. The activities were kicked off 
with a poster campaign and a questionnaire 
which was administered to test knowledge 
of employees on HIV/Aids. Employees 
sported red ribbons on the day and two 
awareness sessions were also held at Town 
Hall.

•	A	separate	budget	is	allocated	to	cover	
employee recreation to promote a stronger 
team culture and bonding. Some of the 
recreational events during the year were 
Halloween Night and Secret Santa.

•	On	their	birthdays,	employees	are	made	to	
feel special and gifted with gift vouchers. 
The company prides itself on celebrating 
every milestone of every employee and 
gifting vouchers is the company’s way of 
sending its appreciation and best wishes. An 
employee marking the birth of their newborn 
is gifted with baby items. 

•	An	employee	referral	program	was	
introduced to recognize and reward staff 
who introduced potential candidates to 
Odel. Employees referring the highest 
number of candidates win rewards and 
recognition. 

Future Outlook
The HR department is gearing up to 
position itself strongly once the Odel 
Mall opens and is already planning 
its future staf�ng and subsequent 
training and development needs. 
The massive size of the operation of 
Odel Mall will give rise to demand 
for additional staff along with 
additional programs and activities 
which will commence within the next 
�nancial year to ful�l this requirement. 
Meanwhile, we will enhance staff 
pro�les in a bid to attract and re-train 
industry-best talent to staff Odel Mall 
when it opens for business.
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Real economic growth in Sri Lanka in 
2016 registered 4.4%, compared with 
4.8% in 2015. The per capita GDP 
dropped to USD 3,835 from USD 3,843 
year ago. The tourist arrivals reached 2 
million in 2016 a growth of 14 % from 
the preceding year. earnings from tourism 
grew by 18.0% to US dollars 3,518 
million in 2016, in comparison to US 
dollars 2,981 million in 2015. These 
developments in macro environment had a 
signi�cant effect on the topline of Odel. 

Revenue
The revenue reached Rs 6.94 Billion which 
is a growth of 7.5% from previous year. 
The broadening of the product range, 
introducing new international branded 
products as well as reorganization of retail 
space and improved visual merchandizing 
contributed to improving the revenue. 
Revisions to taxation policies and rates 
implemented by the Government during 
the year, such as the VAT revision, was 
negatively affected on the topline.   

Gross Margin
Over the past years there has been an 
improvement in gross margin despite the 
effect of retail VAT. The overall Gross Pro�t 
margin in 2017 improved to 45.8% from 
43.4% in previous year. pricing strategy, 
improved sourcing of products and proper 
management of supply chain contributed 
to the improvement in margin.

Overheads
The main components of administration  
costs are staff costs, rent and electricity. 
Increase in the administration cost is due 
to Increase in the business volumes and 
reorganization of existing retail space 
together with the opening of two new 
retails outlets. Rest was contained at the 
same level as previous year despite the 
increase in the in�ation. The in�ation rate 
indicated by CCPI annual average change 
was 3.7% in 2016 increased from 0.9% 
in 2015. This effort and focus will continue 
in the forthcoming years. 

Distribution expenses re�ects the investment 
made in brands building and other 
expense linked to the top line. 

Net Finance cost
During 2016 the interest costs increased 
appreciably in line with the increase in 
lending rates and business volume. The 
364 day Treasury Bills rate increase 
from 7.30% to 10.17% at the end of the 
calendar year and Average Weighted 
Prime Rate too increase from 7.53% to 
11.52%.  The �nance costs recorded  
85% increase as a result of these 
conditions. The overall borrowing levels 
also increased through the year due to 
capital investments made. 

Taxes
Odel is liable for income tax at 28%. The 
effective tax rate has been decreased to 
28% from 36% mainly due to inclusion of 
the dividend income in the company pro�t 
which is subject to 10% dividend tax.  
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Comprehensive Income
The pro�t after tax for the year at Rs 
465 Mn is an increase of 82% from the 
previous �nancial year and it includes 
the contribution from fair value gain on 
investment properties. 

Earnings per Share
The EPS increased from cents 94 to cents 
1.71 in 2016/17 due to improved PAT.   

Dividends
A 51cents dividend per share was paid 
during  2016/17 which compares with 
the total dividend of 30 cents per share 
paid for 2015/16 �nancial year. This 
translated to a payout of 30% of the after 
tax pro�t in 2016/17. The solvency 
position was examined prior to such 
distribution by the Directors and con�rmed 
by the Auditors as per the applicable 
statutory requirements.

Total Equity and Return
Total Equity increased to Rs 7,231 Billion 
from Rs 6,427 Billion through the retention 
of earnings. 

The return on equity increased 
considerably to 6.43% from 3.98% in the 
previous year. The ef�cient utilization of 
funds and improved operating results will 
boost the returns in the forthcoming years.

Non Current Assets
Rs 184 mn was invested in acquiring 
property plant and equipment during the 
year. This includes cost of the capital assets 
acquired for two new retail outlets and 
the new food court. Non current assets 
includes the Investment properties carried 
at fair value amounting to Rs 941Mn. 
(599 Mn in 2016)

Cash Flow
Investment in working capital increased 
mainly due to increase in inventories 
and settlement of related party dues as a 
result of ongoing rapid expansions and 
were �nanced partly from borrowings. 
Despite the above, gearing ratio at year 
end increased marginally to 25% against 
20% year ago and decrease in net cash 
and cash equivalent is 19% against the 
previous year.
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Corporate Governance
Board of Directors
The Board of Directors are responsible 
to the shareholders for creating and 
delivering sustainable shareholder value 
through to the management of the Group’s 
operations. The Committees assist the 
Board in its responsibilities, rendered in 
the form of reports and recommendations 
submitted to the Board.  

Board Composition
The Board consists of �ve directors, 
with a split between 1 executive and 4 
non-executive directors, all of whom are 
independent. The composition of the 
Board is in compliance with the Corporate 
Governance Rules of the Colombo Stock 
Exchange. The directors provide the 
objectivity and are equipped with the skills 
and experience required to discharge their 
responsibilities in an effective manner. 

Responsibilities of the Board
The key roles and responsibilities of the 
Board are as follows;

•	 Exercise	leadership,	enterprise,	
integrity and judgment in directing the 
Company so as to achieve continuing 
prosperity in a manner based on 
transparency, accountability and 
responsibility.

•	 Ensure	a	managed	and	effective	
process of Board appointments

•	 Determine	the	Company’s	purpose,	
values and strategy and ensure that 
procedures and practices are in place

•	 Monitor	and	evaluate	the	
implementation of strategies and 
policies for better management 
performance

•	 Ensure	compliance	with	the	relevant	
laws, regulations and codes of best 
practice on corporate governance

•	 Communicate	with	shareholders	
effectively and serve the legitimate 
interest of the shareholders 

•	 Periodic	and	timely	reporting	to	
shareholders of the progress and 
performance of the Company

•	 Review	processes	and	procedures	
regularly and ensure that internal 
control is effective

•	 Identify	key	risk	areas	and	ensure	
that these risks are addressed and 
managed effectively

•	 Appoint	and	evaluate	the	performance	
of the Managing Director

•	 Approve	the	Annual	Budget

•	 Authorisation	of	Directors’	conflicts	or	
possible con�icts of interest

•	 Determination	of	independence	of	
Non-Executive Directors

•	 Ensure	the	continuation	of	the	
Company as a going concern

Appointment and re-election to 
the Board
Directors are appointed by the Board 
in a structured and transparent manner. 
Appointments are made with due 
consideration given to the diversity of 
skills and experience within the Board. All 

directors appointed during the year seek 
re-election at the subsequent AGM. 

Board Meetings and attendance
The Board meets on a quarterly basis and 
additional meetings are convened when 
necessary.  Scheduled board meetings are 
arranged well in advance to ensure, as 
far as possible, that Directors can manage 
their time commitments.  All Directors are 
provided with supporting documents and 
relevant information for each meeting 
and are expected to prepare themselves 
for and to attend all board meetings, 
shareholders meetings and all meetings 
of the committees on which they serve, 
unless there are exceptional circumstances 
that prevent them from doing so.  Directors 
have full access to Group information 
and are entitled to obtain independent 
professional advice at the Group’s expense 
in appropriate situations. 

Chairman
The Chairman leads the Board in order 
to ensure that it operates effectively and 
fully discharges its �duciary and regulatory 
responsibilities. The Chairman is also 
responsible for ensuring that no single 
individual has autonomous decision 
making powers, thus protecting stakeholder 
interests. Within the Group, the Chairman 
also serves as the Managing Director 
and is responsible for recommending the 
strategic direction to be followed by the 
Group and for implementing the decisions 
of the Board. The performance of the 
Managing Director is reviewed by the 
Board on an annual basis.
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Remuneration of the Board
The remuneration of the Directors is 
determined by the Board and is disclosed 
on page 83 of this Annual Report.

Company Secretary
Messrs Softlogic Corporate Services (Pvt) 
Ltd function as Company Secretaries to the 
Group. The Company Secretary provides 
guidance to the Board as a whole and 
to individual directors with regard to how 
their responsibilities should be discharged. 
The Company Secretary is also responsible 
for ensuring that the Board is compliant 
with the applicable rules and regulations 
and that all activities of the Board are in 
line with the appropriate procedures.

Board Committees
The Board has delegated certain 
authorities to the Board Committees in 
order to manage the affairs of the Board.  
The committees operate under terms of 
reference approved by the Board. Audit 
Committee, Remuneration Committee 
and Related Party Transactions Review 
Committee function as the Board Sub 
Committees.

Independence of the Directors
Mr R. P. Pathirana, Dr S. Selliah and Dr R. 
De Silva function as independent directors 
of the Company.

As per the Rules issued by the Colombo 
Stock Exchange, Mr R. P. Pathirana and 
Dr R. De Silva meet all the criteria of 
independence. Dr S. Selliah meets all the 
criteria of independence except one.  

Dr S. Selliah is a Director of Directors 
of Softlogic Holdings PLC which has a 
signi�cant shareholding in the Company.

The Board having evaluated all the factors 
concluded that their independence have 
not been impaired due to him serving on 
the Board of other company which has a 
signi�cant shareholding in the Company.

Compliance with Corporate Governance Rules of the CSE
The following disclosures are made in conformity with Section 7 of the Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange;

SECTION CRITERIA HAS THE COMPANY MET THE CRITERIA

7.10.1 NON-EXECUTIVE 

DIRECTORS

Complied with.
Out of 5 directors 4 are Non- Executive directors.

7.10.2 INDEPENDENT 

DIRECTORS

Complied with.
There are three independent directors on the Board.  
All non-executive directors have submitted the declaration with regard to their 
independence/non-independence.

7.10.3 DISCLOSURES 

RELATING TO 

DIRECTORS

As per the Rules issued by the Colombo Stock Exchange, Mr R. P. Pathirana and 
Dr R. De Silva meet all the criteria of independence. 
Dr S. Selliah meets all the criteria except one.  

7.10.5 REMUNERATION 

COMMITTEE

Complied with.
Comprises of two independent non-executive directors.
The names of the members of the committee are given in the page 50 of the Annual Report.

7.10.6 AUDIT 

COMMITTEE

Complied with.
Comprises of three independent non-executive directors.
The names of the members of the committee are given in the page 51 of the Annual Report.
The report of the Committee is given on page 51
The Chief Financial Of�cer/Senior Manager - Finance attends all the meetings.
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Risk Management

Risk is a condition in which there exists a quanti�able dispersion in the possible result 
of any activity. Since risk is bound up with doing business, it’s worth managing. Risk 
management comprises of identifying the types of risk exposure within the company, 
measuring those potential risks and developing of strategies to mitigate risk. Risk 
management is an essential element of our corporate governance structure and strategy 
development process.

The process we follow:
Our process of de�ning, assessing, classifying and monitoring risks is set out below

DEFINING RISK

Management de�nes risks as strategic,operational and market.

ASSESSING RISK

Risks are assessed based on their potential impact on business activity, �nancial position 
and reputation. A ‘level 1’ risk is insigni�cant while a ‘level 5’ risk is catastrophic.

ASSESSING LIKELIHOOD

Risks are assessed based on their likelihood of occurrence, considering controls in place 
to address them. A scale of 1 to 5 is used, where 1 indicates ‘Never’ and 5 is ‘Almost 
certain, despite the controls in place’.

CLASSIFYING RISKS

Risks are classi�ed as critical,high, medium and low, based on impact and likelihood.
Where a risk has a high likelihood of occurrence and the impact is high, it would be 
considered critical.

MONITORING & REPORTING RISKS

Operational, tactical and strategic risks are monitored, reported on and managed. 
Internal Audit reviews and reports on their �ndings.



45

The Board of Directors has the overall 
responsibility to manage risks effectively 
to ensure the business developments are 
consistent with the risk appetite and goals 
of the group. The Board Audit Committee 
(BAC) monitors the effectiveness of internal 
controls with the Odel senior management, 
the Group head of Risk & Audit and 
the Head of Internal Audit-Retail Sector. 
The BAC also monitors and reviews the 
effectiveness of the external auditors and 
the Internal Audit.

Odel PLC uses a risk management ranking 
methodology to identify the key risks 
speci�c to our company. The prioritization 
process assists in deciding which risk is 
to be treated as a priority in formulating 
the risk strategy. All the prioritized risks 
will be rated based on the likelihood of 
occurrence and impact it will have. 

Though there are many risks to which a 
business is exposed to some of the key 
risks impacting Odel PLC are discussed 
below. These are mainly categorized into 
strategic, market & operational.

Strategic risk
Uncertainties and untapped opportunities 
embedded in company strategic intent 
and how well they are executed. As such, 
they are key matters for the board and 
effect on the whole business. Strategic 
risks relate to the organization’s longer-
term place in, and relationship with the 
outside environment, which is not under the 
organization’s control.

Operational risk
Risks directly affect to business operations 
with a potential impact on �nancial 

position and business performance or the 
external activities which affect day today 
activities of the company, or the risk of loss 
from a failure of internal business & control 
processes. Fraud Risk, which is the result 
of using deception to dishonestly make a 
personal gain for oneself and/or create a 
loss for another is a critical component of 
operational risks.

Market/Liquidity & Credit risk
Risks faced by the company relate to the 
availability of funds to meet business needs 
and ability to deliver adequate return to the 
company. Risks of losses arising from the 
adverse movements in market prices, risks 
that the Company may not have suf�cient 
funds to meet �nancial obligations and 
failure of a customer to meet its contractual 
obligations.

RISK CATEGORY RISK RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES

STRATEGIC RISK Business is largely dependent upon 

our ability to predict accurately fashion 

trends, customer preferences and other 

fashion-related factors.

A dedicated buying department oversee trends in response to seasonal 

changes & international changes in the fashion industry lowering 

such impact through meticulous planning. Further the team receives 

weekly updates with regards to new developments in fashion from the 

Intercontinental Group of Department Stores (IGDS)

STRATEGIC RISK We rely on foreign sources of production 

and recognized local channels. The 

company could suffer due to increases in 

the price of products and freight & poor 

management of supply chain.

The company has established a separate department to monitor 

�uctuations in prices, favorable markets & distribution channels & it’s 

managed under a dedicated director of logistics & imports linking with the 

buying department.

STRATEGIC RISK Risks from competitive actions from 

existing market participants and new 

entrants

The company is strongly committed to provide high quality products 

of unparalleled selection of fashion right & lifestyle products in an 

environment that is enjoyable & welcoming, stemming from its mission. 

Further leveraging the company’s long-term relationship with recognized 

suppliers & Maintaining a positive relationship with employees with a 

better remuneration and performance appraisal scheme give the company 

a signi�cant advantage over its competitors.
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RISK CATEGORY RISK RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES

STRATEGIC RISK Failure to implement strategic plans, 

Revenue improvement & cost saving 

initiatives and undertake pro�table 

investments.

The company integrates risk awareness directly into strategic decision 

making by holding regular meetings of Board of Directors in order to 

formalize future strategies and plans and to revise and update plans, 

taking in to consideration the changing circumstances of the company.

COMPLIANCE RISK Our business may be affected by 

regulatory, administrative and litigation 

developments.

A comprehensive internal control system is in place supplemented by 

regular audit from the internal audit department in collaboration with the 

legal division. Ensuring all statutory and legal obligations are met in all 

transactions. 

OPERATIONAL RISK Failure in management information 

systems may fail and cause disruptions in 

our business.

A dedicated IT team is in place to support all IT related aspects of the 

company .They make sure that contingency plans are in place to mitigate 

any short term loss on IT services. Further, the company is immensely 

supported by the group’s comprehensive IT policy, in ensuring the safety 

and security of data. 

REPUTATIONAL RISK Risks to the group’s reputation and Brand 

image

The Board ensures that the company strictly complies with all relevant laws 

and codes of best practices and is not involved in any unethical business 

practices. The employees of the company are well informed regarding the 

code of ethics both during the process of recruitment & during their work 

life.

The company legal division oversees any possible matter that leads to 

litigation & make sure that the company invariably complies with the laws 

& regulations.

A separate division for the purpose of development of employee’s skills 

& technical know-how is in place. The internal Audit department with the 

collaboration of the training division, keeps the employees informed about 

the processes by way of introducing & updating Standard Operating 

Procedures (SOPs)

The buying department with the collaboration of the import department 

makes sure that the sources of products are of high quality & invariably 

caters to the ful�lment of the company’s vision & mission.

Risk Management
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RISK CATEGORY RISK RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES

OPERATIONAL RISK Risk from not being able to attract and 

retain skilled and experienced staff

The company has signi�cantly invested in  strengthening our human 

capital through the deployment of the latest Human Resource Information 

Systems, regular staff training & development, succession planning and 

fostering a performance-based culture & attractive remuneration packages. 

Further, the company has introduced various operational level programs 

such as selecting the best employee of the month, Annual Award 

Ceremony for the appreciation of service rendered by the employees.

MARKET RISK

(Exchange Rate risk)

Risks from adverse exchange rate 

�uctuations

The company’s  �nance division linking with the group treasury division 

takes suitable �nancial measures such as obtaining “Forward Rate” 

/”Exchange Rate” agreements whenever necessary.

LIQUIDITY RISK Risk of not being able to meet �nancial 

commitments as and when they fall due

Making optimum use of cash in�ows with the help of the group treasury 

division, ensuring the group-wide interest exposure is kept to a minimum & 

performing regular reviews of the actual performance against planned to 

ensure achievement of budgeted targets.

MARKET RISK

(Interest Rate Risk )

Changes in interest rates may have 

an impact on the pro�tability of the 

company

The company work closely with the parent company to negotiate 

favorable terms & conditions for loan facilities obtained. 
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Report of the Related Party Transactions
Review Committee
Purpose

Related Party Transactions Review Committee was established 
by the Board during the �nancial year under review in order to 
comply with the Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange 
governing related party transactions in respect of listed companies 
as per the Codes of Best Practices on Related Party Transactions 
issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka 
(SEC) (the “Code”) and Section 9 of the Listing Rules of the 
Colombo Stock Exchange (the “Rules”).

The Board Related Party Transactions Review Committee (the 
“Committee”) assists the Board in reviewing all related party 
transactions carried out by the Company and its listed companies 
in the Group by early adopting of the Codes of Best Practice 
on Related Party Transactions as issued by the Securities and 
Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka.

Composition 

The Related Party Transactions Review Committee is appointed by 
the Board of Directors of the Company and the following directors 
were served on the Committee as at 31st March 2017.

Dr I. C. R. De Silva - Independent Non-executive Director 
(Chairperson)

Mr R. P. Pathirana - Independent Non-executive Director 

Mr H. K. Kaimal - Non-executive Director 

The Committee held three meetings during the �nancial year. 
Information on the attendance of these meetings by the members of 
the Committee is given below

Name Meeting Attended

Dr I. C. R. De Silva 2/3

Mr R. P. Pathirana 3/3

Mr H. K. Kaimal 2/3

The Chief Finance Of�cer/Senior Manager - Finance attended all 
meetings by invitation.

Softlogic Corporate Services (Pvt) Ltd, Secretaries of the Company 
function as the Secretary to the Related Party Transactions Review 
Committee.    

Roles and Responsibilities

1. Reviewing in advance all proposed related party transactions 
of the Company in compliance with the Code

2. Adopting policies and procedures to review related party 
transactions of the and reviewing and overseeing existing 
policies and procedures

3. Determining whether related party transactions that are to 
be entered into by the Company require the approval of the 
Board or Shareholders of the Company 

4. If related party transactions are ongoing (recurrent related party 
transactions) the Committee establishes guidelines for senior 
management to follow in its ongoing dealings with the relevant 
related party.

5. Ensuring that no director of the Company shall participate 
in any discussion of a proposed related party transaction 
for which he or she is a related party, unless such Director 
is requested to do so by the Committee for the express 
purpose of providing information concerning the related party 
transaction to the Committee

6. If there is any potential con�ict in any related party transaction, 
the Committee may recommend the creation of a special 
committee to review and approved the proposed related party 
transaction.

7. Ensuring that immediate market disclosures and disclosures 
in the Annual Report as required by the applicable rules/
regulations are made in a timely and detailed manner.
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Compliance with Related Party Transactions Rules

Transactions of related parties (as de�ned in LKAS 24 – Related 
Parties Disclose) with the Company are set out in Note 29 to the 
Financial Statements.

There are no related party transactions which exceed the threshold 
of 10% of the equity or 5% of the total assets, whichever is lower 
in relation to non-recurrent related party transactions or 10% of the 
gross revenue in relation to recurrent related party transactions. The 
Company has complied with the requirements of the Listing Rules 
of the Colombo Stock Exchange on Related Party Transactions

The related party transactions of the Company for the �nancial 
year ended 31st March 2017 have been reviewed by the 
Committee and the activities and comments of the Committee have 
been communicated to the Board of Directors of the Company.

(Sgd.)
Dr I. C. R. De Silva 
Chairman
Related party Transactions Review Committee

07th July 2017
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Report of the Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises the following Non- Executive independent 
Directors at the year-end.

• Mr Ranil Pathirana

• Dr S Selliah

The responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include,

• Ensuring the remuneration policy of the company provides a competitive, attractive 
and reasonable remuneration package for employees at all levels on par with industry 
standards giving due consideration to business performance and long term shareholder 
returns.

• Ensuring the remuneration package of employee is linked to performance, 
responsibility, expertise and contribution.

• Ensuring formal and transparent procedure in implementing the remuneration policy of 
the Company.

Remuneration Committee Meetings

No meetings were held during the year under review.

The aggregate remuneration paid to Directors is disclosed in Note 7 to the �nancial 
statements.

(Sgd.)
Ranil Pathirana
Remuneration Committee 

07th July 2017
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Report of the Audit Committee

Composition of the Audit Committee 

The Audit Committee, appointed by and 
responsible to the Board of Directors, 
comprises of three members. The 
Committee is made up of members who 
bring their varied expertise and knowledge 
to effectively carry out their duties. 
Members of the Committee at year end 
are;

Mr Ranil Pathirana - Chairman 
Independent Non - Executive Director

Dr S Selliah - Non-Executive Independent 
Director

Dr I. C. R De Silva- Non - Executive 
Independent Director

The functions of the Audit Committee are 
governed by an Audit Committee Charter, 
which is reviewed annually.

Objectives and Role of the Audit 
Committee

The main objective of the Audit Committee 
is to assist the Board of Directors to 
perform its duties effectively and ef�ciently. 
Accordingly, the objectives of the Audit 
Committee can be described in detail as 
follows:

•  Oversee the �nancial reporting process 
and determine that the �nancial reports 
present accurate, complete and timely 
�nancial information.

•  Monitor the effectiveness of the 
Company’s risk management processes 
and the internal control system.

•  To assess the independence of the 
External Auditor and monitor the 
performance of Internal and External 
Auditors.

• To recommend to the Board the 
appointment of External Auditors.

Meetings

The Committee held 4 meetings during 
the year under review.  The Chief Finance 
Of�cer and the Senior Manager - Finance 
attended these meetings by invitation.

The attendance of the members at these 
meetings is given below.

Name Meeting 
Attended

Mr Ranil Pathirana 2/4

Dr S Selliah 4/4

Dr I.C.R De Silva 3/4

Summary of Activities

Financial Reporting 

The Committee reviewed the Financial 
Reporting System to determine the 
accuracy and timeliness of the Financial 
Statements published. The Committee 
also reviewed the interim and year-end 
Financial Statements prior to publication, 
in order to determine that the statutory 
requirements have been complied with 
and the Company’s Accounting Policies 
have been consistently applied.

Internal Audit

The Committee monitored the effectiveness 
of the Internal Audit Function and the 
implementation of the recommendations 
made by the Internal Audit. 

External Audit

The Committee reviewed the status of their 
independence.

Conclusion

Based on the review of reports submitted 
by the External and Internal Auditors, the 
information obtained from management 
the Committee having examined the 
adequacy and effectiveness of the internal 
controls which have been designed to 
provide a reasonable but not absolute 
assurance to Directors that the assets of 
the company are safeguarded, is satis�ed 
that the �nancial position of the company 
is regularly monitored and that steps are 
being taken to continuously improve the 
control environment maintained within the 
Company.

The Audit Committee determined that 
Messrs Ernst & Young are independent on 
the basis that they do not participate in 
any management activity of the company 
and do not provide any non-audit services 
to the company and recommended to 
the Board of Directors that Messrs Ernst 
& Young be reappointed as statutory 
Auditors for the �nancial year ending 31st 
March, 2018, subject to approval by the 
Shareholders at the forthcoming Annual 
General Meeting.

(Sgd.)
Ranil Pathirana
Chairman – Audit Committee

07th July 2017
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The Directors of Odel PLC have pleasure in presenting to the 
members their Annual Report together with the Audited Financial 
Statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended 31 
March 2017. 

Principal Activity
The principal activity of the Company during the year was fashion 
retailing offering its customers a total shopping experience.  There 
have been no signi�cant changes in the activities of the company 
during the year under review.

Future Developments
An indication of likely future developments is set out in the 
Chairman’s Review on Pages 8 to 11. 

Performance Review 
The Financial Statements re�ect the state of affairs of the Company 
and the Group. This report forms an integral part of the Annual 
Report of the Board of Directors. 

Financial Statements 
Section 168 (b) of the Companies Act require that the Annual 
Report of the Directors include �nancial statements of the 
Company, in accordance with Section 151 of the Act and Group 
�nancial statements for the accounting period, in accordance with 
section 152 of the Act.  The requisite �nancial statements of the 
Company are given on Pages 60 to 113 of the Annual Report. 

Directors’ Responsibility for Financial Reporting 
The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the Financial 
Statements of the Company to re�ect a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs.  The Directors are of the view that these �nancial 
statements have been prepared in conformity with the requirements 
of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 and the Sri Lanka 
Financial Reporting Standards.  A statement in this regard is given 
on Page 57. 

Auditor’s Report 
The Auditor’s Report on the �nancial statements is given on Pages 
58 to 59 of the Annual Report. 

Signi�cant Accounting Policies 
The signi�cant accounting policies adopted in the preparation 
of the �nancial statements are given on Pages 68 to 81 of 
the Annual Report.  There was no change in the accounting 
policies adopted from the previous year except retirement bene�t 
obligations. 

Property, Plant & Equipment 
The details and movement of property, plant and equipment 
during the year under review is set out in Note 10 to the Financial 
Statements on Pages 86 and 93.

Capital Expenditure 
The total capital expenditure incurred on the acquisition of 
property, plant and equipment for the Company and the Group 
amounted to Rs. 103 Mn (2016 – Rs. 648 Mn) and Rs. 193 Mn 
(2016 – Rs. 809 Mn) respectively.  Details of capital expenditure 
and their movements are given in Note 10 to the Financial 
Statements on Pages 86 to 93 of the Annual Report.

Reserves
The reserves for the Company and Group amounted to Rs 3,557. 
Mn (2016 Rs. 2,958 Mn) and Rs. 4,435. Mn (2016 – Rs. 
3,631 Mn) respectively. 

The movement and composition of the Capital and Revenue 
reserves is disclosed in the Statement of Changes in Equity.

Donations 
During the year, donations made by the Company and Group 
amounted to Rs. 138,356 (2016 - Rs. 2,131,341) and Rs. 
138,356 (2016 – Rs. 2,131,341.00) respectively.

Stated capital 
The stated capital of the Company as at 31 March 2017 was Rs. 
2,795,513,620. There was no change in the stated capital of 
the Company during the year under review.

Annual Report of the Board of Directors on 
the Affairs of the Company 
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Taxation 
The information relating to income tax and deferred taxation is 
given in Note 8 & 9 to the Financial Statements.  

Dividends 
Final dividend  of 11 cents for year 2015/2016 was paid on 
5th July 2016.Interim dividend of Rs. 0.40 (cents 40) per share 
was paid on 3rd March 2017 for year 2016/2017.

Statutory Payments 
The Directors, to the best of their knowledge and belief are 
satis�ed that all statutory payments in relation to the government 
and the employees have been either duly paid or appropriately 
provided for in the Financial Statements. 

Events after the date of the Statement of Financial 
Position 
No circumstances have arisen and no material events have 
occurred after the date of Statement of Financial Position, which 
would require adjustments to, or disclosure in the accounts other 
than those disclosed in Note 34 to the Financial Statements. 

Directorate 
The following Directors held Of�ce during the year under review. 
The biographical details of the Board members are set out on 
Pages 12 and 15.

Mr A.K.Pathirage 
Dr S Selliah 
Mr H.K.Kaimal 
Mr R.P.Pathirana 
Dr I.C.R De Silva 

Directors’ Shareholding 
No director directly held shares of the Company as at 31st March 
2017 and 31st March 2016.

Directors’ Remuneration 
Directors’ remuneration in respect of the Company for the �nancial 
year ended 31 March 2017 was Rs. 3,600,000. Mn (2016 – 
Rs. 3,675,000). The remuneration of the Directors is determined 
by the Board. 

Directors’ interests in contracts and proposed 
contracts with the Company 
Directors’ interests in contracts, both direct and indirect are referred 
to in Note 29 to the Financial Statements. The Directors have no 
direct or indirect interest in any other contract or proposed contract 
with the Company. 

Interests Register 
The Interests Register is maintained by the Company as per the 
Companies Act No. 07 of 2007. All Directors have disclosed 
their interests pursuant to Section 192(2) of the said Act. 

Shareholders’ Information 
The distribution of shareholders is indicated on Pages 114 to 115 
of the Annual Report. There were 5,492 registered shareholders 
as at 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016 – 5,858). 

Share Information 
Information on share trading is given on Page 114 of the Annual 
Report. 

Internal Control 
The Directors are responsible for the governance of the Company 
including the establishment and maintenance of the Company’s 
system of internal control.  Internal control systems are designed 
to meet the particular needs of the organization concerned 
and the risk to which it is exposed and by their nature can 
provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance against material 
misstatement or loss. The Directors are satis�ed that a strong 
control environment is prevalent within the Company and that the 
internal control systems referred to above are effective. 

Risk Management 
The Group’s risk management objectives and policies and the 
exposure to risks, are set out in Page 44 of the Annual Report. 

Corporate Governance  
The report on Corporate Governance is given on Pages 42 to 43 
of the Annual Report. 
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Annual General Meeting 
The Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at 
the “Lavender Room” of Bandaranaike Memorial International 
Conference Hall (BMICH), Bauddhaloka Mawatha, Colombo 07 
on Thursday the 7th day of September 2017 at 10.30 a.m.  The 
Notice of the Annual General Meeting is on Page 118 of the 
Annual Report. 

For and on behalf of the Board 

(Sgd.)

A. K. Pathirage
Chairman/Managing Director 

(Sgd.)

H. K. Kaimal 
Director 

(Sgd.)

Softlogic Corporate Services (Pvt) Ltd
Secretaries 

07th July 2017 
Colombo

Annual Report of the Board of Directors on 
the Affairs of the Company 

The Auditors 
The Board Audit Committee reviews the appointment of the 
external auditors, as well as their relationship with the Group, 
including monitoring the Group’s use of the auditors for non-audit 
services and the balance of audit and non-audit fees paid to the 
auditors. 

The group works with 2 �rms of chartered accountants across the 
group namely, Ernst & Young and KPMG. Details of audit fees are 
set out in note 7 to the �nancial statements.

As far as the Directors are aware, the Auditors do not have any 
relationship (other than that of an auditor) with the Company that 
would have an impact on their independence.  The Auditors also 
do not have any interest in the Company. 

Having reviewed the independence and effectiveness of the 
external auditors, the Audit Committee has recommended to the 
Board that the existing auditors, Messrs Ernst & Young, Chartered 
Accountants be reappointed.  Ernst & Young have expressed 
their willingness to continue in of�ce and ordinary resolution 
reappointing them as auditors and authorising the Directors to 
determine their remuneration will be proposed at the forthcoming 
AGM. 

Going Concern 
The Directors having assessed the environment within which 
it operates, the Board is satis�ed that the Company and the 
Group have adequate resources to continue its operations in the 
foreseeable future.  Therefore, the Directors have adopted the 
going-concern basis in preparing the �nancial statements. 
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The responsibilities of the Directors, in relation to the �nancial 
statements of the Company differ from the responsibilities of the 
Auditors, which are set out in the Report of the Auditors on Page 
58. 

The Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 stipulates that the Directors 
are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the �nancial 
statements. Company law requires the Directors to prepare 
�nancial statements for each �nancial year, giving a true and 
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the 
�nancial year, and of the Statement of Comprehensive Income of 
the Company and the Group for the �nancial year, which comply 
with the requirements of the Companies Act. 

The Directors consider that, in preparing �nancial statements 
set out on Pages 60 to 113 of the Annual Report, appropriate 
accounting policies have been selected and applied in a 
consistent manner and supported by reasonable and prudent 
judgments and estimates, and that all applicable accounting 
standards have been followed.  The Directors con�rm that they 
have justi�ed in adopting the going concern basis in preparing 
the �nancial statements since adequate resources are available to 
continue operations in the foreseeable future. 

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting 
records, which disclose reasonable accuracy, at any time, the 
�nancial position of the Company and to enable them to ensure 
the �nancial statements comply with the Companies Act No. 07 
of 2007.  

They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and for taking reasonable steps for the prevention 
and detection of fraud and other irregularities.  In this regard 
the Directors have instituted an effective and comprehensive 
system of internal control.  The Directors are required to prepare 
�nancial statements and to provide the external auditors with 
every opportunity to take whatever steps and undertake whatever 
inspections they may consider to be appropriate to enable them to 
give their independent audit opinion. 

The Directors are of the view that they have discharged their 
responsibilities as set out in this statement. 

Compliance Report 
The Directors con�rm that to the best of their knowledge, all taxes, 
duties and levies payable by the Company, all contributions, levies 
and taxes payable on behalf of and in respect of the employees 
of the Company and other known statutory dues as were due 
and payable by the Company as at the date of the Statement of 
Financial Position have been paid or, where relevant provided for, 
in arriving at the �nancial results for the year under review. 

For and on behalf of the Board of 

ODEL PLC 

(Sgd.)

Softlogic Corporate Services (Pvt) Ltd
Secretaries 

07th July 2017

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities
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Independent Auditor’s Report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ODEL PLC

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying �nancial statements of Odel 
PLC, (“the Company”), and the consolidated �nancial statements 
of the Company and its subsidiaries (“Group”), which comprise 
the statement of �nancial position as at 31 March 2017, and the 
income statement, statement of comprehensive income, statement 
of changes in equity and, cash �ow statement for the year then 
ended, and a summary of signi�cant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information.

Board’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Board of Directors (“Board”) is responsible for the preparation 
of these �nancial statements that give a true and fair view in 
accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, and for such 
internal control as Board determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of �nancial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these �nancial 
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards. Those standards 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the �nancial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 
about the amounts and disclosures in the �nancial statements. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including 

the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the �nancial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the 
entity’s preparation of the �nancial statements that give a true and 
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An 
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
made by Board, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of 
the �nancial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suf�cient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated �nancial statements give a true 
and fair view of the �nancial position of the Group as at 31 
March 2017, and of its �nancial performance and cash �ows 
for the year then ended in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting 
Standards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 163 (2) of the Companies Act No. 07 of 
2007, we state the following:

a) The basis of opinion, scope and limitations of the audit are as 
stated above. 

b) In our opinion:

-  We have obtained all the information and explanations that 
were required for the audit and, as far as appears from our 
examination, proper accounting records have been kept by 
the Company,

-    The �nancial statements of the Company give a true and fair 
view of its �nancial position as at 31 March 2017, and of 
its �nancial performance and cash �ows for the year then 
ended in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, 
and

-    The �nancial statements of the Company and the Group 
comply with the requirements of sections 151 and 153 of 
the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007.

07th July 2017
Colombo
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Income Statement
For the Year ended 31 March 2017

Company Group

For the Year ended 31 March For the Year ended 31 March 

2017 2016 2017 2016

Note  LKR  LKR  LKR  LKR 

Revenue 3  5,463,703,682  5,230,665,337  6,937,874,201  6,454,643,024 

Cost of sales  (2,981,029,146)  (2,951,201,976)  (3,759,880,729)  (3,653,512,327)

Gross pro�t  2,482,674,536  2,279,463,361  3,177,993,472  2,801,130,697 

Other income 4  215,411,038  1,933,681  332,385,684  25,865,654 

Distribution expenses  (336,837,456)  (305,530,951)  (412,505,346)  (395,787,966)

Administrative expenses  (1,751,852,470)  (1,543,166,894)  (2,211,459,135)  (1,904,587,680)

Operating pro�t  609,395,648  432,699,197  886,414,675  526,620,705 

Finance costs 5  (258,002,067)  (134,646,083)  (247,573,185)  (133,684,144)

Finance income 6  38,509,483  33,804,329  10,139,792  7,352,478 

Pro�t before tax  389,903,064  331,857,443  648,981,282  400,289,039 

Income tax expense 8  (56,649,003)  (106,475,733)  (184,123,333)  (144,460,581)

Pro�t for the year  333,254,061  225,381,710  464,857,949  255,828,458 

Attributable to:

Owners of the parent  464,857,949  255,828,458 

Non controlling interest  -    -   

 464,857,949  255,828,458 

Earning per share

Basic, pro�t for the year attributable to ordinary 25 1.22 0.83 1.71 0.94 

equity holders of the parent

The accounting policies and notes on page 68 through 113 form an integral part of the �nancial statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the Year ended 31 March 2017

Company Group

 For the Year ended 31 March  For the Year ended 31 March 

2017 2016 2017 2016

Note  LKR  LKR LKR LKR

Pro�t for the year  333,254,061  225,381,710  464,857,949  255,828,458 

Other comprehensive income

Actuarial loss on de�ned bene�t plans 19  (958,783)  19,663,669  772,583  25,835,558 

Income tax effect  268,459  (5,505,827)  (216,323)  (7,233,956)

 (690,324)  14,157,842  556,260  18,601,602 

Revaluation of land and buildings 10  404,632,463  920,352,238  442,476,406  969,974,642 

Income tax effect  -    (1,820,347)  -    (19,205,095)

 404,632,463  918,531,891  442,476,406  950,769,547 

Other comprehensive Pro�t/(loss) for the year, 
net of tax  403,942,139  932,689,733  443,032,666  969,371,149 

Total comprehensive income for the year, net of 
tax  737,196,200  1,158,071,443  907,890,615  1,225,199,607 

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent  907,890,615  1,225,199,607 

Non-controlling interests  -    -   

 907,890,615  1,225,199,607

The accounting policies and notes on page 68 through 113 form an integral part of the �nancial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 March 2017

 Company  Group 

2017 2016 2017 2016

Note  LKR  LKR  LKR  LKR 

 ASSETS 

 Non-Current Assets 

 Property, plant & equipment 10  4,893,467,527  4,410,147,811  5,711,656,571  5,285,233,493 

 Investment property 11  -    -    941,000,000  599,480,000 

 Intangible assets 12  -    -    575,972,552  693,454,272 

 Investment in subsidiaries 13  2,097,389,040  2,097,389,040  -    -   

 Other �nancial assets 28  52,410,866  42,469,730  70,166,057  51,561,850 

 Goodwill  12.2  -    -    104,680,409  104,680,409 

 Deferred tax asset 9  -    -    76,198,219  99,420,076 

 7,043,267,433  6,550,006,581  7,479,673,808  6,833,830,100 

 Current Assets 

 Inventories  14  1,737,034,874  1,406,470,145  2,384,226,652  1,936,047,379 

 Trade and other receivables 15  699,183,074  524,665,025  788,495,893  603,703,037 

 Amounts due from related parties 17  244,319,205  317,039,316  54,454,479  87,056,813 

 Income tax refund due  10,793,968  -    -    -   

 Other �nancial assets 28  8,973,164  17,655,709  8,973,164  23,793,709 

 Cash and bank balances 22  38,787,283  61,972,516  82,363,158  83,208,435 

 2,739,091,568  2,327,802,711  3,318,513,346  2,733,809,373

 Total Assets  9,782,359,001  8,877,809,292  10,798,187,154  9,567,639,473 

 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

 Equity 

 Stated capital 23  2,795,513,620  2,795,513,620  2,795,513,620  2,795,513,620 

 Revaluation surplus  2,184,526,197  1,786,936,542  2,686,714,934  2,227,598,126 

 Retained earnings  1,372,298,448  1,171,477,913  1,748,573,766  1,404,424,800 

 Total Equity  6,352,338,265  5,753,928,075  7,230,802,320  6,427,536,546 

 Non-Current Liabilities 

 Interest bearing borrowings 18  435,419,911  395,950,210  435,419,911  395,950,210 

 Deferred tax liabilities 9  40,459,060  45,997,810  48,882,526  85,007,276 

 Retirement bene�t liability 19  39,583,277  33,096,316  47,826,823  41,658,733 

 515,462,248  475,044,336  532,129,260  522,616,219 
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 Company  Group 

2017 2016 2017 2016

Note  LKR  LKR  LKR  LKR 

 Current Liabilities  

 Trade and other payables 20  748,403,088  725,077,238  875,902,198  799,495,952 

 Amounts due to related parties 21  177,182,037  468,712,605  1,023,436  327,561,704 

 Income tax payable  -    67,400,069  29,801,199  82,947,091 

 Interest bearing borrowings 18  1,930,788,943  1,340,215,452  2,061,696,682  1,352,246,519 

 Deferred liability 16  58,184,420  47,431,517  66,832,060  55,235,442 

 2,914,558,488  2,648,836,881  3,035,255,575  2,617,486,708 

 Total Equity and Liabilities  9,782,359,001  8,877,809,292  10,798,187,154  9,567,639,473 

 -    -    -    -   

Net asset per share 23.34 21.14 26.57 23.62

These �nancial statements are in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act No 7 of 2007

(Sgd)
Senior Manager Finance

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these �nancial statements. 

Signed for and on behalf of the board by

(Sgd) (Sgd).
Chairman Director

The accounting policies and notes on page 68 through 113  form an integral part of the �nancial statements.

7th July 2017
Colombo
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Company

Revaluation Stated  Retained Total

Reserve Capital  Earnings Equity

LKR LKR LKR LKR

As at 31 March 2015  875,770,994  2,795,513,620  1,006,210,847  4,677,495,461 

Net pro�t for the year  -    -    225,381,710  225,381,710 

Other comprehensive income  918,531,891  -    14,157,842  932,689,733 

 1,794,302,885  2,795,513,620  1,245,750,399  5,835,566,904 

Dividends  -    -    (81,638,829)  (81,638,829)

Revaluation surplus transferred to retained earnings  (7,366,343)  -    7,366,343  -   

As at 31 March 2016  1,786,936,542  2,795,513,620  1,171,477,913  5,753,928,075 

Net pro�t for the year  -    -    333,254,061  333,254,061 

Other comprehensive income  404,632,463  -    (690,324)  403,942,139 

 2,191,569,005  2,795,513,620  1,504,041,650  6,491,124,275 

Dividends  (138,786,010)  (138,786,010)

Revaluation surplus transferred to retained earnings  (7,042,808)  7,042,808  -   

As at 31 March 2017  2,184,526,197  2,795,513,620  1,372,298,448  6,352,338,265 

Statement of Changes In Equity
For the Year ended 31 March 2017



65

Group Attributable to equity holders of the parent

Revaluation Stated  Retained Total

Reserve Capital  Earnings Equity

LKR LKR LKR LKR

As at 31 March 2015  1,284,834,010  2,795,513,620  1,203,628,138  5,283,975,768 

Net pro�t for the year  -    -    255,828,458  255,828,458 

Other comprehensive income  950,769,547  -    18,601,602  969,371,149 

 2,235,603,557  2,795,513,620  1,478,058,198  6,509,175,375 

Dividends  -    -    (81,638,829)  (81,638,829)

Revaluation surplus transferred to retained earnings  (8,005,431)  -    8,005,431  -   

As at 31 March  2016  2,227,598,126  2,795,513,620  1,404,424,800  6,427,536,546 

Net pro�t for the year  -    -    464,857,949  464,857,949 

Other comprehensive income  442,476,406  -    556,260  443,032,666 

 2,670,074,532  2,795,513,620  1,869,839,009  7,335,427,161 

Dividends  (138,786,010)  (138,786,010)

Deferred tax impact on revalued building_Reversed  34,161,169  -    34,161,169 

Revaluation surplus transferred to retained earnings  (17,520,767)  17,520,767  -   

As at 31 March 2017  2,686,714,934  2,795,513,620  1,748,573,766  7,230,802,320

The accounting policies and notes on page 68 through 113 form an integral part of the �nancial statements.
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Cash Flow Statement
For the Year ended 31 March 2017

 Company  Group 

2017 2016 2017 2016

Note  LKR  LKR  LKR  LKR 

CASH FLOWS FROM / (USED IN) OPERATING 
ACTIVITIES

Net pro�t before Income tax expense  389,903,064  331,857,443  648,981,282  400,289,039 

Adjustments for

Depreciation 10.1.3  103,336,073  109,703,633  209,442,968  211,996,121 

Intangible assets amortization 12.1.2  -    -    117,481,719  48,283,407 

Finance costs 5  258,002,067  134,646,083  247,573,185  133,684,144 

Finance income 6  (30,406,003)  (33,804,329)  (2,036,312)  (7,352,478)

Fair value (gain)/loss on investment property 4  -    -    (341,520,000)  (24,980,000)

Derecognition of property, plant & equipment  242,418  -    242,418  -   

(Pro�t)/loss on disposal of property, plant & 
equipment 4  (2,726,186)  947,585  13,665,354  913,955 

Income on investment in unit trust   (24,661)  (15,999)  (24,661)  (15,999)

Dividend income 4  (211,320,000)  (1,845,000)  -    -   

Provision for de�ne bene�t plans 19.1  9,055,378  11,799,226  11,718,057  15,338,600 

Operating pro�t before working capital changes  516,062,150  553,288,642  905,524,010  778,156,789 

Decrease/(Increase) in inventories  (330,564,729)  (45,444,086)  (448,179,273)  (38,179,819)

Decrease/(Increase) in trade and other receivables  (174,518,049)  (320,360,714)  (184,792,856)  (304,736,479)

Decrease/(Increase) in dues from related parties  101,103,157  913,896,561  32,602,334  (86,686,551)

Decrease/(Increase) in other current �nancial 
assets  (1,233,930)  (93,540)  (3,759,001)  13,159,740 

(Decrease)/Increase in dues to related parties  (312,426,593)  343,675,636  (326,538,268)  76,072,767 

(Decrease)/Increase in trade and other payables  23,325,850  210,072,097  76,406,247  292,909,484 

(Decrease)/Increase in deferred liability  18,856,383  (42,551)  19,700,098  (3,762,484)

Cash generated from operations  (159,395,761)  1,654,992,045  70,963,291  726,933,447 
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 Company  Group 

2017 2016 2017 2016

Note  LKR  LKR  LKR  LKR 

Finance costs paid 5  (237,106,042)  (126,009,082)  (247,573,185)  (133,684,144)

De�ned bene�t plan costs paid 19  (3,527,201)  (6,618,537)  (4,777,380)  (7,354,643)

Income tax paid/Dividend tax paid  (140,113,329)  (11,554,655)  (216,227,275)  (21,654,341)

Net cash from/(used in) operating activities  (540,142,333)  1,510,809,771  (397,614,550)  564,240,319 

CASH FLOWS FROM / (USED IN) INVESTING 
ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of property, plant & equipment 10  (184,793,275)  (719,617,488)  (212,641,026)  (860,721,962)

Investment in equity shares of subsidiaries 13  -    (1,119,288,000)  -    -   

Dividend received 4  211,320,000  1,845,000  -    -   

Finance income 6  (6,080,523)  623,963  (6,067,168)  7,352,478 

Proceed from disposal of �xed assets  5,253,717  550,984  5,343,613  30,837,396 

Net cash �ows from/(used in) investing activities  25,699,919  (1,835,885,541)  (213,364,581)  (822,532,088)

CASH FLOWS FROM / (USED IN) FINANCING 
ACTIVITIES

Repayment of interest bearing borrowings 18  (3,768,853,978)  (4,351,263,850)  (3,768,853,978)  (4,534,744,400)

Proceeds from interest bearing borrowings 18  4,096,852,356  4,477,668,230  4,220,107,039  4,624,233,460 

Dividends paid  (138,786,010)  (81,638,829)  (138,786,010)  (81,638,829)

Net cash �ows from/(used in) �nancing 
activities  189,212,368  44,765,551  312,467,051  7,850,231 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents  (325,230,047)  (280,310,219)  (298,512,080)  (250,441,538)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of 
the year  (188,720,640)  91,589,579  (179,515,788)  70,925,750 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the 
year 22  (513,950,687)  (188,720,640)  (478,027,868)  (179,515,788)

The accounting policies and notes on page 68 through 113 form an integral part of the �nancial statements.
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1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

1.1 General 

 Odel PLC is a limited liability company incorporated and 
domiciled in Sri Lanka whose shares are publicly traded 
in the Colombo Stock Exchange. The registered of�ce 
of Odel PLC is located at No 475/32, Kotte Road, 
Rajagiriya. Odel PLC is a subsidiary of Softlogic Retail (Pvt) 
Limited and Softlogic Holding PLC is the ultimate parent. 
The details of subsidiary companies are as follows.

 SUBSIDIARIES

 Odel Apparels (Pvt) Ltd 

 Odel Apparels (Pvt) Ltd is a limited liability company 
incorporated and domiciled in Sri Lanka. The registered 
of�ce of the Company is located at No.475/32, Kotte 
Road, Rajagiriya and the principal place of business is 
situated at No. 71/3, Kamatawatte Road, Rajagiriya.

 Odel Properties (Pvt) Ltd

 Odel Properties (Pvt) Limited is a limited liability company 
incorporated and domiciled in Sri Lanka. The registered 
of�ce and principle place of business of the Company is 
located at No. 475/32, Kotte Road Rajagiriya.

   Odel Lanka (Pvt) Ltd

 Odel Lanka (Pvt) Limited is a limited liability company 
incorporated and domiciled in Sri Lanka. The registered 
of�ce of the Company is located at No.475/32, Kotte 
Road, Rajagiriya and the principal place of business 
is situated at 271, Kaduwela Road, Thalangama, 
Battaramulla.

 Odel Information Technology Services (Pvt) Ltd

 Odel Information Technology Services (Pvt) Ltd is a limited 
liability company incorporated and domiciled in Sri Lanka. 
The registered of�ce and principle place of business of 
the Company is located at No.475/32, Kotte Road 
Rajagiriya.

 BSL International (Pvt) Ltd

 BSL International (Pvt) Ltd is a limited liability company 
incorporated and domiciled in Sri Lanka. The registered 

of�ce of the Company is located at No.38 Dickmens 
Road, Colombo 05, and the principal place of business 
is situated at P.O.Box 5, Export Processing Zone, 
Katunayake.

 Green�eld Trading (Pvt) Ltd

 Green�eld Trading (Pvt) Ltd is a limited liability company 
incorporated and domiciled in Sri Lanka. The registered 
of�ce and the principle place of business is situated at 
475/32, Kotte Road, Rajagiriya. 

 Softlogic Brands (Pvt) Ltd

 Softlogic Brands (Pvt) Ltd is a limited liability Company 
incorporated and domiciled in Sri Lanka. The registered 
of�ce of the Company is located at No. 14, De Fonseka 
Place, Colombo 05.

1.2 Principal Activities and Nature of Operations

 During the year, the principal activities of the group were 
as follows;   

 PARENT COMPANY

 During the year, the principal activities of the Company 
were to carry out fashion retail activities and to earn rental 
income from letting retail space.

 SUBSIDIARIES

  Odel Apparels (Pvt) Ltd

 During the year, the principal activities of the Company 
were to manufacture and supply of the Garments to the 
group.

 Odel Properties (Pvt) Ltd

 During the year, the principal activities of the Company 
were to carry out real estate activities in relation to retail 
business

  Odel Lanka (Pvt) Ltd

  Principal activity of the Company was to hold its property 
for capital appreciation purpose.
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 Odel Information Technology Services (Pvt) Ltd

 During the year, the principal activities of the Company 
were to provide information technology infrastructure and 
maintenance services for the group companies.

 BSL International (Pvt) Ltd

 No activities were carried out during the year, and it is in 
the process of liquation. 

 Green�eld Trading (Pvt) Ltd

 No activities were carried out during the year, and it is in 
the process of liquation. 

 Softlogic Brands (Pvt) Ltd

 The principal activities of the Company were to import and 
retailing   Branded apparels .

1.3 Date of Authorization for issue 

 The consolidated �nancial statements of Odel PLC and 
Its Subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2017were 
authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the 
directors on 7th July 2017.

2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

 The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group 
(Income Statement, Statement of Comprehensive Income, 
Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Changes in 
Equity, Statement of Cash Flows together with Accounting 
Policies and Notes) as at 31 March 2017 are prepared in 
accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (SLFRSs) 
as laid down by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Sri Lanka. 

2.1 Basis of Preparation and Measurement

  The consolidated �nancial statements have been prepared 
on a historical cost basis, except for land and buildings 
and Financial Instruments that have been measured at fair 
value. The preparation and presentation of these �nancial 
statements are in compliance with the Companies Act 
No.07 of 2007. 

 Consolidated �nancial statements are presented in Sri 
Lankan Rupees except when otherwise indicated.

2.2 Basis of Consolidation

 The consolidated �nancial statements comprise the 
�nancial statements of the Group and its subsidiaries 
as at 31 March 2017. Control is achieved when the 
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from 
its involvement with the investee and has the ability to 
affect those returns through its power over the investee. 
Speci�cally, the Group controls an investee if, and only if, 
the Group has:

•	 Power	over	the	investee	(i.e.,	existing	rights	that	give	it	the	
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee)

•	 Exposure,	or	rights,	to	variable	returns	from	its	involvement	
with the investee

•	 The	ability	to	use	its	power	over	the	investee	to	affect	its	
returns

 Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting 
rights result in control. To support this presumption and 
when the Group has less than a majority of the voting 
or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all 
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has 
power over an investee, including:

•	 The	contractual	arrangement	with	the	other	vote	holders	of	
the investee

•	 Rights	arising	from	other	contractual	arrangements

•	 The	Group’s	voting	rights	and	potential	voting	rights

 The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an 
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there 
are changes to one or more of the three elements of 
control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the 
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases 
when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, 
liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired 
or disposed of during the year are included in the 
consolidated �nancial statements from the date the Group 
gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the 
subsidiary.

 Pro�t or loss and each component of other comprehensive 
income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the 
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parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, 
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a 
de�cit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made 
to the �nancial statements of subsidiaries to bring their 
accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting 
policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, 
income, expenses and cash �ows relating to transactions 
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on 
consolidation.

 A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without 
a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

 If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises 
the related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, non-
controlling interest and other components of equity while 
any resultant gain or loss is recognised in pro�t or loss. 
Any investment retained is recognised at fair value.

2.3 Signi�cant Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions

 The preparation of these �nancial statements requires 
management to make judgments, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the application of accounting 
policies and the reported amounts of income, expenses, 
assets, liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, 
at the end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty 
about these assumptions and estimates could result in 
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying 
amount of the asset or liability affected in future period.

 Judgments and estimates are based on historical 
experience and other factors, including expectations that 
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 
Hence actual experience and results may differ from 
these judgments and estimates. Estimates and underlying 
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions 
to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in 
which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only 
that period and any future periods.

 In the process of applying the Company’s accounting 
policies, the key assumptions made relating to the future 
and the sources of estimation at the reporting date together 
with the related judgments that have a signi�cant risk of 
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts 
of assets and liabilities within the next �nancial year are 
discussed below.

 Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment and 
Intangible Assets

 Management assigns useful lives and residual values 
to property, plant and equipment based on the 
intended use of assets and the economic lives of these 
assets. Subsequent changes in circumstances such 
as technological advances or utilization of the assets 
concerned could result in the actual useful lives or residual 
values differing from initial estimates. Management reviews 
annually the residual values and useful lives of major 
items of property, plant and equipment. Refer Note 2.4.7 
for useful lives used in depreciating Property, Plant and 
Equipment and intangible assets in the Company.

 Retirement Bene�t Obligations

 The cost of de�ned bene�t plan is determined using 
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves 
making various assumptions that may differ from actual 
developments in the future. These include the determination 
of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality 
rates. Due to the complexity of the valuation, the 
underlying assumptions and its long-term nature, a de�ned 
bene�t obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these 
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each 
reporting date. Further details about the assumptions used 
are provided in Note 19.2.

 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

 Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset 
or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, 
which is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its 
value in use. The fair value less costs to sell calculation is 
based on available data from binding sales transactions 
in arm’s length transactions of similar assets or observable 
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of 
the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a 
discounted cash �ow model as well as the expected future 
cash-in�ows and the growth rate used for extrapolation 
purposes.

 Deferred Tax

 Deferred tax liability as re�ected in Note 09 are 
recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that is 
probable that taxable pro�t will be available against 
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which the losses can be utilized. Signi�cant management 
judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred 
tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely 
timing and the level of future taxable pro�ts together with 
the future tax planning strategies.

2.4 Summary of Signi�cant Accounting Policies

 The following are the signi�cant accounting policies 
applied by the Group in preparing its consolidated 
�nancial statements:

2.4.1 Business combinations and goodwill

 Business combinations are accounted for using the 
acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured 
as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, 
measured at the acquisition date fair value and the 
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree. 
For each business combination, the Group elects whether 
to   measure the non-controlling interest in the acquiree 
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree 
at the fair value or at the proportionate share of the 
acquiree’s identi�able net assets. Acquisition-related costs 
are expensed as incurred and included in administrative 
expenses.

 When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the 
�nancial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate 
classi�cation and designation in accordance with the 
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent 
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the 
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by 
the acquiree.

 If the business combination is achieved in stages, 
the previously held equity interest is remeasured at its 
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is 
recognised in pro�t or loss. Any contingent consideration 
to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair 
value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration 
which is deemed to be an asset or liability that is a 
�nancial instrument and within the scope of LKAS 39 
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, is 
measured at fair value with changes in fair value either 
in pro�t or loss or as a change to other comprehensive 
income (OCI). If the contingent consideration is not within 

the scope of LKAS 39, it is measured in accordance with 
the appropriate SLFRS. 

 Contingent consideration that is classi�ed as equity is not 
remeasured and subsequent settlement is measured at 
fair value with changes in fair value either in a pro�t or 
loss or as a change to the other comprehensive income 
(OCI). If the contingent consideration is not within the 
scope of LKAS 39,it is measured in accordance with 
the appropriate SLFRS. Contingent consideration that is 
classi�ed as equity is not remeasured and subsequent 
settlement is accounted for within equity.

 Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess 
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the 
amount recognised for non-controlling interest over the 
net identi�able assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If 
the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the 
aggregate consideration transferred, the gain is recognised 
in pro�t or loss.

 After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost 
less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose 
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business 
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated 
to each of the Group’s cash- generating units that are 
expected to bene�t from the combination, irrespective 
of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are 
assigned to those units.

 Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating 
unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed 
of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of 
is included in the carrying amount of the operation when 
determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. 
Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured 
based on the relative values of the operation disposed of 
and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

2.4.2 Foreign currency translation

 The Group’s consolidated �nancial statements are 
presented in Sri Lankan Rupees, which is also the parent 
company’s and its subsidiary companies functional 
currency. 
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 Transactions and balances

 Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by 
the Group entities at their respective functional currency 
spot rate at the date the transaction �rst quali�es for 
recognition.

 Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies are retranslated at the functional currency spot 
rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date.

 Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary 
items are recognised in pro�t or loss.

 Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of 
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the 
exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. 
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign 
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the 
date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss 
arising on translation of non-monetary measured at fair 
value is treated in line with the recognition of gain or loss 
on change in fair value in the item (i.e., the translation 
differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is 
recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI) or 
pro�t or loss are also recognised in OCI or pro�t or loss, 
respectively).

2.4.3 Revenue recognition

 Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable 
that the economic bene�ts will �ow to the Group and the 
revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when 
the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the 
fair value of the consideration received or receivable, 
taking into account contractually de�ned terms of payment 
and excluding taxes or duty. The Group assesses its 
revenue arrangements against speci�c criteria in order to 
determine if it is acting as principal or agent. The Group 
has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its 
revenue arrangements. The following speci�c recognition 
criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:

 Sale of goods

 Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the 
signi�cant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods 
have passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods.

 Loyalty Points Scheme

 The Group operates a loyalty points programme, which 
allows customers to accumulate points when they purchase 
products in the Group’s retail stores. The points can then 
be redeemed for free products. Consideration received is 
allocated between the products sold and the points issued, 
with the consideration allocated to the points equal to their 
fair value. 

 Fair value of the points is determined by applying a 
statistical analysis. The fair value of the points issued is 
deferred and recognised as revenue when the points are 
redeemed or at the expiry of points awarded.

 Interest income

 For all �nancial instruments measured at amortised cost 
and interest bearing �nancial assets classi�ed as available 
for sale, interest income or expense is recorded using the 
effective interest rate (EIR), which is the rate that exactly 
discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts 
through the expected life of the �nancial instrument or a 
shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying 
amount of the �nancial asset or liability. Interest income is 
included in �nance income in the income statement.

 Dividends

 Revenue is recognised when the Group’s right to receive 
the payment is established.

 Rental income

 Rental income arising from operating leases on shop space 
provided to tenants is accounted for on a straight-line basis 
over the lease terms.

2.4.4 Expenditure recognition

a) Expenses are recognized in the income statement on the 
basis of a direct association between the cost incurred and 
the earning of speci�c items of income. All expenditure 
incurred in the running of the business and in maintaining 
the property, plant & equipment in a state of ef�ciency has 
been charged to income in arriving at the pro�t for the 
year.

b) For the purpose of presentation of the Consolidated 
Income Statement the Directors are of the opinion that the 
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function of expenses method presents fairly the elements of 
the Company’s performance, and hence such presentation 
method is adopted. 

2.4.5 Taxes

 Current income tax

 Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current 
period are measured at the amount expected to be 
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax 
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those 
that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting 
date.

 Current income tax relating to items recognised directly 
in equity is recognised in equity and not in the income 
statement. Management periodically evaluates positions 
taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which 
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and 
establishes provisions where appropriate.

 Deferred tax

 Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on 
temporary differences at the reporting date between 
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying 
amounts for �nancial reporting purposes.

 Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable 
temporary differences, except:

• When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial 
recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a 
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the 
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting pro�t 
nor taxable pro�t or loss

• In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with 
investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint 
ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary 
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the 
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable 
future.

 Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible 
temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits 
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable 

that taxable pro�t will be available against which the 
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of 
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, 
except: 

• When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible 
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of 
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business 
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects 
neither the accounting pro�t nor taxable pro�t or loss.

• In respect of deductible temporary differences associated 
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in 
joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to 
the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences 
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable pro�t will 
be available against which the temporary differences can 
be utilised.

 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed 
at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it 
is no longer probable that suf�cient taxable pro�t will be 
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be 
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed 
at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent 
that it has become probable that future taxable pro�ts will 
allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax 
rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset 
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and 
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted 
at the reporting date.

 Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside pro�t or 
loss is recognised outside pro�t or loss. Deferred tax items 
are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction 
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if 
a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets 
against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes 
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation 
authority.
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2.4.6 Sales tax

 Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the 
amount of sales tax, except:

•	 Where	the	sales	tax	incurred	on	a	purchase	of	assets	or	
services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in 
which case the sales tax is recognised as part of the cost 
of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as 
applicable.

•	 Receivables	and	payables	are	stated	with	the	amount	of	
sales tax included the net amount of sales tax recoverable 
from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as 
part of receivables or payables in the statement of �nancial 
position.

 The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable 
to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables 
or payables in the statement of �nancial position.

2.4.7 Property, plant and equipment

 Property, plant and equipment is measured at cost., net of 
accumulated depreciation and/or accumulated impairment 
losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing 
component parts of the property, plant and equipment and 
borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the 
recognition criteria are met. 

 When signi�cant parts of property, plant and equipment 
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group 
derecognises the replaced part, and recognises the new 
part with its own associated useful life and depreciation. 
Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost 
is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and 
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria 
are satis�ed. All other repair and maintenance costs are 
recognised in the income statement as incurred. 

 The present value of the expected cost for the 
decommissioning of the asset after its use is included in the 
cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a 
provision are met. 

 Land and buildings are measured at fair value less 
accumulated depreciation on buildings and impairment 
losses recognised after the date of the revaluation. 

Valuations are performed with suf�cient frequency to 
ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ 
materially from its carrying amount. 

 A revaluation surplus is recognised in other comprehensive 
income and accumulated in equity in the asset revaluation 
reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation 
decrease of the same asset previously recognised in the 
income statement, in which case the increase is recognised 
in the income statement. A revaluation de�cit is recognised 
in the income statement, except to the extent that it offsets 
an existing surplus on the same asset recognised in the 
asset revaluation reserve.

 An annual transfer from the asset revaluation reserve to 
retained earnings is made for the difference between 
depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of 
the assets and depreciation based on the assets original 
cost. Additionally, accumulated depreciation as at the 
revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying 
amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to 
the revalued amount of the asset. Upon disposal, any 
revaluation reserve relating to the particular asset being 
sold is transferred to retained earnings.

 Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the 
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

• Buildings Over 40 Years

• Lease hold buildings Over the lease period

• Equipment Over 10 Years

• Fixtures – air condition Over 10 Years

• Fixtures – other Over 10 Years

• Furniture Over 10 Years

• Of�ce Equipment – computer Over 05 Years

• Of�ce Equipment – other Over 20 Years

• Shop �ttings - �xtures Over 10 Years

• Shop �ttings - mobiles Over 10 Years

• Motor vehicles Over 05 Years

• Motor vehicles – �nance lease Over the lease period

 An item of property, plant and equipment and any 
signi�cant part initially recognised is derecognised upon 
disposal or when no future economic bene�ts are expected 
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from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on 
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset) is included in the income statement 
when the asset is derecognised.

 The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of 
depreciation are reviewed at each �nancial year end and 
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

2.4.8 Leases

 The determination of whether an arrangement is, or 
contains, a lease is based on the substance of the 
arrangement at the inception date, whether ful�lment of 
the arrangement is dependent on the use of a speci�c 
asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use 
the asset, even if that right is not explicitly speci�ed in an 
arrangement.

 Group as a lessee

 Finance leases which transfer to the Group substantially 
all the risks and bene�ts incidental to ownership of the 
leased item, are capitalised at the commencement of the 
lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, 
at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease 
payments are apportioned between �nance charges and 
reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant 
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. 
Finance charges are recognised in �nance costs in the 
income statement.

 A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the 
asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the 
Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, 
the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated 
useful life of the asset and the lease term.

 Operating lease payments are recognised as an operating 
expense in the income statement on a straight-line basis 
over the lease term.

 Group as a lessor

 Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially 
all the risks and bene�ts of ownership of the asset are 
classi�ed as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in 

negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying 
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease 
term on the same bases as rental income.

2.4.9 Borrowing costs

 Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes 
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended 
use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the 
respective assets. All other borrowing costs are expensed 
in the period they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest 
and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the 
borrowing of funds.

2.4.10 Investment Properties

 Investment properties are measured initially at cost, 
including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial 
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, 
which re�ects market conditions at the reporting date. 
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values 
of investment properties are included in the income 
statement in the period in which they arise. Fair values are 
evaluated annually by an accredited external, independent 
valuer, applying a valuation model recommended by the 
International Valuation Standards Committee.

 Investment properties are derecognised when either they 
have been disposed of or when the investment property is 
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic 
bene�t is expected from its disposal. The difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset is recognised in the income statement 
in the period of derecognition.

 Transfers are made to or from investment property only 
when there is a change in use. For a transfer from 
investment property to owner-occupied property, the 
deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value 
at the date of change. If owner-occupied property 
becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for 
such property in accordance with the policy stated under 
property, plant and equipment up to the date of change.
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2.4.11 Intangible assets

 Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on 
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets 
acquired in a business combination is their fair value as 
at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, 
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated 
amortization amortization and accumulated impairment 
losses, if any. Internally generated intangible assets, 
excluding capitalised development costs, are not 
capitalised and expenditure is re�ected in the income 
statement in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

 The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either 
�nite or inde�nite.

 Intangible assets with �nite lives are amortised over 
their useful economic lives and assessed for impairment 
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset 
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the 
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a �nite 
useful life is reviewed at least at the end of each reporting 
period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected 
pattern of consumption of future economic bene�ts 
embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing 
the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and 
are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The 
amortisation expense on intangible assets with �nite lives 
is recognised in the income statement in the expense 
category consistent with the function of the intangible 
assets.

 Amortization is calculated on a straight-line basis over the 
estimated useful lives of the asset as follows:

• Computer Software 3 - 5 Years

• Brands Names 5 – 10 Years

 Intangible assets with inde�nite useful lives are not 
amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, 
either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. 
The assessment of inde�nite life is reviewed annually 
to determine whether the inde�nite life continues to be 
supportable. If not, the change in useful life from inde�nite 
to �nite is made on a prospective basis. Gains or losses 
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are 
measured as the difference between the net disposal 

proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are 
recognised in the income statement when the asset is 
derecognised.

2.4.12 Financial instruments — initial recognition and 
subsequent measurement

i) Financial assets

 Initial recognition and measurement

 Financial assets within the scope of LKAS 39 are classi�ed 
as �nancial assets at fair value through pro�t or loss, loans 
and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, available-
for-sale �nancial assets, or as derivatives designated as 
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. 
The Group determines the classi�cation of its �nancial 
assets at initial recognition.

 All �nancial assets are recognised initially at fair value 
plus transaction cost, except in the case of assets recorded 
at fair value through pro�t or loss, directly attributable 
transaction costs. 

 Purchases or sales of �nancial assets that require delivery 
of assets within a time frame established by regulation or 
convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are 
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group 
commits to purchase or sell the asset.

 The Group’s �nancial assets include cash and short-
term deposits, trade and other receivables, quoted and 
unquoted �nancial instruments.

 Subsequent measurement

 The subsequent measurement of �nancial assets depends 
on their classi�cation as follows:

 Financial assets at fair value through pro�t or loss

 Financial assets at fair value through pro�t or loss includes 
�nancial assets held for trading and �nancial assets 
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through 
pro�t or loss. Financial assets are classi�ed as held for 
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or 
repurchasing in the near term. This category includes 
derivative �nancial instruments entered into by the Group 
that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge 
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relationships as de�ned by LKAS 39. Derivatives, including 
separated embedded derivatives are also classi�ed as 
held for trading unless they are designated as effective 
hedging instruments. 

 Financial assets at fair value through pro�t and loss are 
carried in the statement of �nancial position at fair value 
with changes in fair value recognised in �nance income or 
�nance costs in the income statement.

 The Group evaluates its �nancial assets held for trading, 
other than derivatives, to determine whether the intention 
to sell them in the near term is still appropriate. When 
the Group is unable to trade these �nancial assets due 
to inactive markets and management’s intention to sell 
them in the foreseeable future signi�cantly changes, the 
Group may elect to reclassify these �nancial assets in 
rare circumstances. The reclassi�cation to loans and 
receivables, available-for-sale or held to maturity depends 
on the nature of the asset. This evaluation does not affect 
any �nancial assets designated at fair value through pro�t 
or loss using the fair value option at designation.

 Loans and receivables

 Loans and receivables are non-derivative �nancial assets 
with �xed or determinable payments that are not quoted in 
an active market. After initial measurement, such �nancial 
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using 
the effective interest rate method (EIR), less impairment. 
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any 
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs 
that are an integral part of the IR. The EIR amortisation 
is included in �nance income in the income statement. 
The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the 
income statement in �nance costs.

 Derecognition

 A �nancial asset (or, where applicable a part of a 
�nancial asset or part of a group of similar �nancial assets) 
is derecognised when:

• The rights to receive cash �ows from the asset have 
expired

• The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash �ows 
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the 

received cash �ows in full without material delay to a 
third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either 
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks 
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither 
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and 
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the 
asset.

 When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash 
�ows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through 
arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset nor 
transferred control of it, the asset is recognised to the extent 
of the Group’s continuing involvement in it.

 In that case, the Group also recognises an associated 
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability 
are measured on a basis that re�ects the rights and 
obligations that the Group has retained. 

 Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee 
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower Of the 
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum 
amount of consideration that the Group could be required 
to repay.

ii) Impairment of �nancial assets

 The Group assesses at each reporting date whether 
there is any objective evidence that a �nancial asset or a 
group of �nancial assets is impaired. A �nancial asset or 
a group of �nancial assets is deemed to be impaired if, 
and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as 
a result of one or more events that has occurred after the 
initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and 
that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash 
�ows of the �nancial asset or the group of �nancial assets 
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment 
may include indications that the debtors or a group of 
debtors is experiencing signi�cant �nancial dif�culty, 
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the 
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other �nancial 
reorganisation and where observable data indicate that 
there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash 
�ows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions 
that correlate with defaults.
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 Financial assets carried at amortised cost

 For �nancial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group 
�rst assesses whether objective evidence of impairment 
exists individually for �nancial assets that are individually 
signi�cant, or collectively for �nancial assets that are not 
individually signi�cant. If the Group determines that no 
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually 
assessed �nancial asset, whether signi�cant or not, it 
includes the asset in a group of �nancial assets with 
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses 
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed 
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or 
continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective 
assessment of impairment.

 If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has 
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the 
difference between the assets carrying amount and the 
present value of estimated future cash �ows (excluding 
future expected credit losses that have not yet been 
incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash 
�ows is discounted at the �nancial asset’s original effective 
interest rate. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the 
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the 
current effective interest rate.

 The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the 
use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss 
is recognised in the income statement. Interest income 
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount 
and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount 
the future cash �ows for the purpose of measuring the 
impairment loss. The interest income is recorded as part 
of �nance income in the income statement. Loans together 
with the associated allowance are written off when there 
is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral 
has been realised or has been transferred to the Group. 
If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated 
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an 
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the 
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or 
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a future 
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to 
�nance costs in the income statement

iii) Financial liabilities

 Initial recognition and measurement

 Financial liabilities within the scope of LKAS 39 are 
classi�ed as �nancial liabilities at fair value through 
pro�t or loss, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives 
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, 
as appropriate. The Group determines the classi�cation of 
its �nancial liabilities at initial recognition. 

 All �nancial liabilities are recognised initially at fair 
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, carried 
at amortised cost. This includes directly attributable 
transaction costs. 

 The Group’s �nancial liabilities include trade and other 
payables, bank overdrafts, loans and borrowings.

 Subsequent measurement

 The measurement of �nancial liabilities depends on their 
classi�cation as follows:

 Financial liabilities at fair value through pro�t or loss

 Financial liabilities at fair value through pro�t or loss 
include �nancial liabilities held for trading and �nancial 
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair 
value through pro�t or loss. Financial liabilities are 
classi�ed as held for trading if they are acquired for 
the purpose of selling in the near term. This category 
includes derivative �nancial instruments entered into by the 
Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in 
hedge relationships as de�ned by LKAS 39. Separated 
embedded derivatives are also classi�ed as held for 
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging 
instruments.

 Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are 
recognised in the income statement. The Group has not 
designated any �nancial liabilities upon initial recognition 
as at fair value through pro�t or loss.

 Loans and borrowings

 After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and 
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses 
are recognised in the income statement when the liabilities 
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are derecognised as well as through the effective interest 
rate method (EIR) amortisation process. Amortised cost is 
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium 
on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of 
the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in �nance costs in 
the income statement.

 Derecognition

 A �nancial liability is derecognised when the obligation 
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. 
When an existing �nancial liability is replaced by another 
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the 
terms of an existing liability are substantially modi�ed, such 
an exchange or modi�cation is treated as a derecognition 
of the original liability and the recognition of a new 
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying 
amounts is recognised in the income statement.

iv) Offsetting of �nancial instruments

 Financial assets and �nancial liabilities are offset and 
the net amount reported in the consolidated statement 
of �nancial position if, and only if, there is a currently 
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts 
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to 
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

v) Fair value of �nancial instruments

 The fair value of �nancial instruments that are traded 
in active markets at each reporting date is determined 
by reference to quoted market prices or dealer price 
quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price for 
short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs. 

 For �nancial instruments not traded in an active market, 
the fair value is determined using appropriate valuation 
techniques. Such techniques may include; 

 Using recent arm’s length market transactions; 

 Reference to the current fair value of another instrument that 
is substantially the same; 

 a discounted cash �ow analysis or other valuation models. 

 An analysis of fair values of �nancial instruments and 
further details as to how they are measured are provided in 
Note 12.

2.4.13 Impairment of non-�nancial assets

 The Group assesses at each reporting date whether 
there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If 
any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing 
for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s 
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is 
the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit (CGU) 
fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is 
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does 
not generate cash in�ows that are largely independent 
of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where 
the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its 
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and 
is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing 
value in use, the estimated future cash �ows are discounted 
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that 
re�ects current market assessments of the time value of 
money and the risks speci�c to the asset. In determining 
fair value less costs to sell, recent market transactions are 
taken into account, if available. If no such transactions 
can be identi�ed, an appropriate valuation model is used. 
These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, 
quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or 
other available fair value indicators.

 The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed 
budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared 
separately for each of the Group’s cash-generating units to 
which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets 
and forecast calculations are generally covering a period 
of �ve years. For longer periods, a long term growth rate 
is calculated and applied to project future cash �ows after 
the �fth year. 

 Impairment losses of continuing operations, including 
impairment on inventories, are recognised in the income 
statement in those expense categories consistent with 
the function of the impaired asset, except for a property 
previously revalued where the revaluation was taken to 
other comprehensive income. In this case, the impairment 
is also recognised in other comprehensive income up to 
the amount of any previous evaluation.

 For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at 
each reporting date as to whether there is any indication 
that previously recognised impairment losses may no 



80 ODEL PLC|Annual Report 2016/17

longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication 
exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or cash-generating 
unit’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised 
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a 
change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s 
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was 
recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying 
amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable 
amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have 
been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment 
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such 
reversal is recognised in the income statement unless the 
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the 
reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. The following 
criteria are also applied in assessing impairment of speci�c 
assets:

2.4.14 Inventories

 Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net 
realizable value. The management primarily determines 
cost of inventories using the weighted average method. 
The management estimates the net realizable value of 
inventories based on assessment of receipt of committed 
sales prices and provide for excess and obsolete 
inventories based on historical usage, estimated future 
demand and related pricing. In determining excess 
quantities, the management considers recent sales 
activities, related margin and market positioning of its 
products. However, factors beyond its contract, such 
as demand levels, technological advances and pricing 
competition, could change from period to period. Such 
factors may require the Group to reduce the value of its 
inventories. 

 Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present 
location and condition is accounted for as follows:

• Purchase cost on an actual  basis

• Closing balance of the inventory on weighted average 
cost

2.4.15 Cash and short-term deposits

 Cash and short-term deposits in the statement of �nancial 
position comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with a maturity of three months or less.

 For the purpose of the consolidated statement cash �ows, 
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits as de�ned above, net of outstanding bank 
overdrafts.

2.4.16 Provisions

 Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present 
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, 
it is probable that an out�ow of resources embodying 
economic bene�ts will be required to settle the obligation 
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 
obligation. 

 Where the Group expects some or all of a provision to be 
reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate 
asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. 
The expense relating to any provision is presented in the 
income statement net of any reimbursement. 

 If the effect of the time value of money is material, 
provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that 
re�ects, where appropriate, the risks speci�c to the liability. 
Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision 
due to the passage of time is recognised as a �nance cost. 

2.4.17 Post-employment bene�ts

 De�ned Bene�t Plan - Gratuity:

 Gratuity is a post-employment bene�t plan. Provisions 
have been made for retirement gratuities from the �rst year 
of service for all employees in conformity with LKAS 19. 
However under the Gratuity Act No. 12 of 1983, the 
liability to an employee arises only on completion of �ve 
years of continued service, The Company is liable to pay 
gratuity in terms of relevant statute. In order to meet this 
liability the Group uses an actuarial valuation method in 
accordance with LKAS 19.

 The cost of providing bene�ts under gratuity is determined 
using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains 
and losses are recognised in full in the period in which 
they occur in the statement of comprehensive income. The 
de�ned bene�t liability comprises the present value of the 
de�ned bene�t obligation using a discount rate based on 
market yields at the end of reporting period on government 
bonds of a similar tenure as the estimated term of the 
gratuity obligation. 
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 The gratuity bene�t of the Group in unfunded.

 De�ned Contribution Plans

 Employees are eligible for Employees’ Provident Fund 
Contributions and Employees’ Trust Fund Contributions 
in line with the respective statutes and regulations. The 
Company contributes 12% and 3% of gross emoluments of 
employees to Employees’ Provident Fund and Employees’ 
Trust Fund respectively.

2.5 Sri Lanka Accounting Standards Not Yet Effective

 Certain new accounting standards and amendments / 
improvements to existing standards have been published, 
that are not mandatory for 31 March 2017 reporting 
periods. None of those have been early adopted by the 
group/Company.

 SLFRS 2 – Classi�cation and Measurement of Share- based 
Payment Transactions 

 (Amendments to SLFRS 2)

 The ICASL issued amendments to SLFRS 2 – Share-based 
Payment that address three main areas: the effects of 
vesting conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled 
share-based payment transaction; the classi�cation of 
a share based payment transaction with net settlement 
features for withholding tax obligations; and accounting 
where a modi�cation to the terms and conditions of a 
share-based payment transaction changes its classi�cation 
from cash settled to equity settled. On adoption, entities 
are required to apply the amendments without restating 
prior periods, but retrospective application is permitted if 
elected for all three amendments and other criteria are met. 

 The amendments are effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with early 
application permitted. Since the company has not yet 
implemented a share based payment scheme there will be 
no direct impact towards the company after implementing 
the standard. Therefore the impact on the implementation 
of the above Standard has not been quanti�ed yet.

 SLFRS 9 Financial Instruments

 SLFRS 9 replaces the existing guidance in LKAS 39 
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. 

SLFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classi�cation 
and measurement of �nancial instruments, a new expected 
credit loss model for calculating impairment on �nancial 
assets, and new general hedge accounting requirements. 
It also carries forward the guidance on recognition and 
de-recognition of �nancial instruments from LKAS 39.

 SLFRS 9 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning 
on or after 1 January 2018, with early adoption permitted. 
The impact on the implementation of the above Standard 
has not been quanti�ed yet. 

 SLFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

 SLFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for 
determining whether, how much and when revenue is 
recognized. It replaces existing revenue recognition 
guidance, including LKAS 18 Revenue, LKAS 11 
Construction Contracts and IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty 
Programs.

 SLFRS 15 is effective for annual reporting periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with early adoption 
permitted. The impact on the implementation of the above 
Standard has not been quanti�ed yet.

 SLFRS 16 – Leases

 SLFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, 
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for 
both parties to a contact. i.e., the customer (‘Lessee’) and 
the supplier (‘lessor’). SLFRS 16 will replace Sri Lanka 
Accounting Standard – LKAS 17 – Leases and related 
interpretations. SLFRS 16 introduces a single accounting 
model for the lessee, eliminating the present classi�cation 
of leases in LKAS 17 as either operating leases or �nance 
leases.

 SLFRS 16 will become effective on 1st January 2019. The 
impact on the implementation of the above standard has 
not been quanti�ed yet.
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                            Company                                Group

2017 2016 2017 2016

LKR LKR LKR LKR

3 REVENUE 

Sale of goods

  Sales - local  5,169,378,438  5,017,458,252  6,645,874,215  6,248,360,475 

  Sales - exports  -    -    -    -   

 5,169,378,438  5,017,458,252  6,645,874,215  6,248,360,475 

Less: Sales tax  (48,625,477)  (47,527,961)  (67,465,358)  (64,385,812)

Sales of goods total  5,120,752,961  4,969,930,291  6,578,408,857  6,183,974,663 

Rental income  334,509,807  252,538,005  346,116,435  257,299,100 

Advertising income  6,058,284  6,266,075  6,058,284  6,266,075 

Commission income  -    3,498  4,907,995  5,175,718 

Service income  2,382,630  1,927,468  2,382,630  1,927,468 

 5,463,703,682  5,230,665,337  6,937,874,201  6,454,643,024 

                            Company                                Group

2017 2016 2017 2016

LKR LKR LKR LKR

4 OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Fair value gain/(loss) on investment property  -    -    341,520,000  24,980,000 

Pro�t on disposal of property, plant & equipment  2,726,186  (947,585)  (13,665,354)  (913,955)

Sundry income  1,392,814  1,163,218  4,559,000  1,926,561 

Unclaimed creditors written back  (52,623)  (142,951)  (52,623)  (142,951)

Income on investment in unit trust  24,661  15,999  24,661  15,999 

Dividend income  211,320,000  1,845,000  -    -   

 215,411,038  1,933,681  332,385,684  25,865,654 

                            Company                                Group

2017 2016 2017 2016

LKR LKR LKR LKR

5 FINANCE COSTS

Interest expense on overdrafts  35,561,601  5,406,141  35,561,601  5,406,141 

Interest expense on loans & borrowings  201,544,441  120,602,941  208,259,220  128,278,003 

Interest on intercompany borrowings  20,896,025  8,637,001  3,752,364  -   

 258,002,067  134,646,083  247,573,185  133,684,144 
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                            Company                                Group

2017 2016 2017 2016

LKR LKR LKR LKR

6 FINANCE INCOME

Interest income  2,022,957  623,963  2,036,312  3,120,404 

Fair Value Adjustment on Interest Income  8,103,480  4,232,074  8,103,480  4,232,074 

Intercompany interest  28,383,046  28,948,292  -    -   

 38,509,483  33,804,329  10,139,792  7,352,478

                            Company                                Group

2017 2016 2017 2016

LKR LKR LKR LKR

7 PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Administration Expenses

Directors’ emoluments  3,600,000  3,675,000  3,600,000  3,675,000 

Depreciation  103,336,078  109,705,127  209,136,006  211,777,244 

Amortisation of intangible assets  -    -    117,481,719  48,283,407 

Personnel costs includes - 

  - Gratuity  9,055,378  11,799,226  11,718,057  15,338,600 

  - EPF & ETF  60,160,590  49,966,962  75,280,168  64,122,777 

  - Other staff costs  499,448,371  475,221,121  618,225,680  594,679,587 

Donations  138,356  2,131,341  138,356  2,131,341 

Audit fees  1,327,155  1,349,920  2,093,631  2,191,260 

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Transport cost  32,162,032  28,498,369  35,669,252  39,230,291 

Marketing & promotions  167,320,173  176,113,650  209,969,377  229,921,578 

                            Company                                Group

2017 2016 2017 2016

LKR LKR LKR LKR

8 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current tax expense on ordinary activities for the 
year  61,475,790  100,850,763  125,689,229  126,077,813 

Under/(over) provision of current taxes in respect of 
prior year  443,504  890,053  14,392,146  2,502,163 

Dividend tax  -    -    23,000,004  205,000 

Deferred income tax

Deferred taxation charge /(reversal)  (5,270,291)  4,734,917  21,041,954  15,675,605 

Income tax expense/(income) reported in the 
income statement  56,649,003  106,475,733  184,123,333  144,460,581 
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                            Company                                Group

2017 2016 2017 2016

LKR LKR LKR LKR

8 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTD..)

Statement of other Comprehensive Income

Deferred income tax related to items charged or 
credited directly to equity during the year

Net gain on revaluation of building  -    1,820,347  -    19,205,095 

Actuarial losses on de�ned bene�t plans  (268,459)  5,505,827  216,323  7,233,956 

Income tax charged/(reversed) directly to OCI  (268,459)  7,326,174  216,323  26,439,051

8.1 A Reconciliation between tax expenses and the product of accounting pro�t multiplied by the statutory tax rate is as follows

                            Company                                Group

2017 2016 2017 2016

LKR LKR LKR LKR

Accounting pro�t before tax  389,903,064  331,857,443  648,981,282  400,289,039 

 389,903,064  331,857,443  648,981,282  400,289,039 

Income tax rate of 28% (2015 : 28%)  109,172,858  92,920,084  181,714,759  112,080,931 

Under/(over) provision for previous year  443,504  890,053  14,392,146  2,502,163 

Allowable expenses  (23,547,662)  (27,327,762)  (33,610,031)  (74,038,216)

Income exempt from tax  (59,256,791)  (521,080)  (95,712,791)  (6,998,880)

Non dedctable expenses  35,107,385  42,434,513  94,182,431  104,293,530 

Tax loss claimed  -    (6,654,992)  (21,365,135)  (9,259,552)

Dividend tax  -    -    23,480,000  205,000 

Effect on deferred tax  (5,270,291)  4,734,917  21,041,954  15,675,605 

 56,649,003  106,475,733  184,123,333  144,460,581 

The effective income tax rate 14.53% 32.08% 28.37% 36.09%

Income tax expense reported  56,649,003  106,475,733  184,123,333  144,460,581

Notes to the Financial Statements
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9 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS ,LIABILITIES AND INCOME TAX RELATES TO THE FOLLOWING;     

Company Company Balance Sheet Group Balance Sheet

2017 2016 2017 2016

LKR LKR LKR LKR

Deferred Tax Liability

Capital allowances for tax purposes   56,935,639  52,571,401  106,166,155  95,753,138 

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment  10,898,377  15,974,203  10,898,377  50,135,373 

 67,834,017  68,545,604  117,064,533  145,888,510 

Deferred Tax Assets 

De�ned bene�t plans   (11,083,318)  (9,266,968)  (12,911,652)  (11,176,187)

Provision for Bad Debts  -    -    (718,600)  -   

Deferred revenue  (2,477,556)  (2,121,397)  (2,477,556)  (2,121,397)

Tax losses  -    -    (114,458,336)  (133,659,199)

Operating lease (Straight line)  (13,814,083)  (11,159,428)  (13,814,083)  (13,344,527)

 (27,374,957)  (22,547,793)  (144,380,226)  (160,301,310)

Net Deferred Tax Liability/ (Assets)  40,459,060    45,997,810  (27,315,693)    (14,412,800)

Net Deferred Tax in the Group represents

Deferred Tax Assets (76,198,219) (99,420,076)

Deferred Tax Liability 48,882,526 85,007,276

(27,315,693) (14,412,800)

Company Balance Sheet Group Balance Sheet

2017 2016 2017 2016

LKR LKR LKR LKR

Deferred Tax Liability

Capital allowances for tax purposes  4,364,238  (481,397)  10, 413,020  9,342,133 

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment  (5,075,825)  1,820,347  (5,075,826)  19,205,095 

 (711,587)  1,338,950  5,337,194  28,547,227 

Deferred tax assets 

De�ned bene�t plans  (1,816,350)  4,055,236  (1,735,465)  4,661,550 

Provision for Bad Debts  -    -    (718,600)  -   

Deferred revenue  (356,158)  (471,701)  (356,158)  (471,702)

Tax losses  -    6,654,992  19,200,863  11,072,164 

Operating lease (Straight line)  (2,654,655)  483,616  (469,556)  (1,701,483)

 (4,827,164)  10,722,143  15,921,084  13,560,529 

Deferred income tax charge / (reverse)  (5,538,750)  12,061,093  21,258,277  42,107,756 

Reported in the Statement of Income  (5,270,291)  4,734,917  21,041,954  15,668,705 

Reported in the Statement of Comprehensive Income  (268,459)  7,326,176  216,323  26,439,051
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10 PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT       

10.1 Company

Balance Balance

As at Acquisitions/ Reclassi�ed / Disposals / Write-offs / As at 

1-Apr-16 Transfers Revaluation Transfers Discarded 31-Mar-17

LKR LKR LKR LKR  LKR LKR

10.1.1 Gross carrying amounts

At cost

Landscaping  884,560  -    -    -    -    884,560 

Building - leasehold  86,858,730  -    -    (4,133,070)  -    82,725,660 

Of�ce equipment  210,072,113  31,119,170  -    (16,141,493)  (142,438)  224,907,352 

Fixtures - other  38,078,784  -    -    (18,679,419)  -    19,399,365 

Fixtures - air conditions  12,558,168  -    -    (1,608,548)  -    10,949,620 

Furniture  63,335,451  1,462,197  -    (16,639,305)  (204,835)  47,953,508 

Of�ce equipment- other  5,518,879  -    -    (1,868,344)  -    3,650,535 

Shop �ttings - �xtures  363,675,306  62,090,358  -    (45,396,241)  -    380,369,423 

Shop �ttings - mobiles  21,271,738  20,000  -    (6,504,723)  -    14,787,015 

Motor vehicles  18,848,033  8,687,597  -    (2,455,373)  -    25,080,257 

Motor vehicles -lease  4,718,750  -    -    -    -    4,718,750 

 825,820,512  103,379,322  -    (113,426,516)  (347,273)  815,426,045 

At valuation

Land  3,883,650,000  -    328,350,000  -    -    4,212,000,000 

Building  171,960,750  -    68,539,250  -    -    240,500,000 

 4,055,610,750  -    396,889,250  -    -    4,452,500,000 

   

Balance Balance

As at Incurred during Reclassi�ed / Disposals / Write-offs / As at

1-Apr-16 the year Revaluation Transfers Discarded 31-Mar-17

LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR

10.1.2 In the Course of 
Constructions

Capital work in progress  73,671,604  188,685,161  (86,687,861)  175,668,904 

Total gross carrying 

amount 73,671,604  188,685,161  -    (86,687,861)  -    175,668,904 

Total 4,955,102,866  292,064,483  396,889,250  (200,114,377)  (347,273) 5,443,594,949 

       

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Balance Balance

as at Acquisitions/ Charge for Disposals /  Write-offs / as at

1-Apr-16 Transfers the year Transfers  Discarded 31-Mar-17

LKR LKR LKR LKR  LKR LKR

10.1.3 Depreciation 
At Cost
Landscaping  884,560  -    -    -    -    884,560 
Building - leasehold  73,541,134  -    4,878,182  (2,066,528)  -    76,352,788 
Of�ce equipment  119,082,545  -    21,687,174  (12,345,063)  (47,724)  128,376,932 
Fixtures - other  36,578,878  -    795,367  (18,219,153)  -    19,155,092 
Fixtures - air conditions  12,558,168  -    -    (1,608,548)  -    10,949,620 
Furniture  36,014,448  -    5,493,237  (11,581,661)  (57,131)  29,868,893 
Of�ce equipment- other  2,638,147  -    322,722  (1,161,338)  -    1,799,531 
Shop �ttings - �xtures  229,817,709  -    58,910,724  (35,431,904)  -    253,296,529 
Shop �ttings - mobiles  16,463,357  -    871,561  (5,446,069)  -    11,888,849 
Motor vehicles  11,807,114  -    3,484,138  (2,455,374)  -    12,835,878 
Motor vehicles -lease  4,718,750  -    -    -    -    4,718,750 

 544,104,810  -    96,443,105  (90,315,638)  (104,855)  550,127,422 
At valuation
Building  850,245  -    6,892,968  (7,743,213)  -    -   

 850,245  -    6,892,968  (7,743,213)  -    -   

Total  544,955,055  -    103,336,073  (98,058,851)  (104,855)  550,127,422

 Company     

2017 2016
LKR  LKR 

10.1.4 Net Book Value 
At Cost
Building - lease hold  6,372,872  13,317,596 
Of�ce equipment  96,530,420  90,989,568 
Fixtures - other  244,273  1,499,906 
Furniture  18,084,615  27,321,003 
Of�ce equipment- other  1,851,004  2,880,732 
Shop �ttings - �xtures  127,072,894  133,857,597 
Shop �ttings - mobiles  2,898,166  4,808,381 
Motor vehicles  12,244,379  7,040,919 

 265,298,623  281,715,702 
At valuation
Land  4,212,000,000  3,883,650,000 
Building  240,500,000  171,110,505 

 4,452,500,000  4,054,760,505 

10.1.5 In the course of constructions
Capital work in progress  175,668,904  73,671,604 
Total gross carrying amount  175,668,904  73,671,604 

Total  4,893,467,527  4,410,147,811
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10.1.6 The company uses the revaluation model for measurement of land and buildings. The company engaged chartered valuer      
M/S G.W.G. Abeygunawardene an accredited independent valuer, to determine the fair value of its land and buildings. Fair 
value is determined by reference to market-based evidence. Valuations are based on comparison method/DRC method, adjusted 
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the speci�c property. The date of the most recent revaluation was on 
31st March 2017. The previous revaluation was on 31 March 2016.

  

Cumulative

depreciation Net carrying Net carrying

If assets were amount amount

Class of asset Cost carried at cost 2017 2016

LKR LKR LKR LKR

 Building  151,516,248  33,921,374  117,594,874  121,462,306 

 Land  2,458,773,636  -    2,458,773,636  2,130,423,636

10.1.7 Land and buildings with a carrying value of LKR 4,405,000,000/= (2016 -  4,020,358,692 /= ) have been pledged as 
security for term loans obtained, details of which are disclosed in Note 26.     

10.1.8 Property plant and equipments included fully depreciated assets having a gross carrying amount of Rs. 261,513,478/- (2016- 
Rs.267,378,689/- )      

10.1.9 The extent and the  location of the entity’s land and buildings (Company) are shown below

Address  Land/ Building  Valuation Extent 

No. 10, Ward Place, Colombo 07. 

 Land & Building  Revalued 
Land - A 1, R 3, P 27.58                     
Buildings - Sqf 14,491 

No. 15, C.W.W. Kannangara Mawatha, 
Colombo 07. 

No. 21/5, C.W.W.Kannangara Mawatha, 
Colombo 07. 

No.25/2 ,3,5,6 & 6B,C.W.W. Kannangara 
Mawatha, Colombo 07. 

No.17,17/1,17/1A,19 & 19A, C.W.W. 
Kannangara Mawatha, Colombo 07. 

No. 25, C.W.W. Kannangara Mawatha, 
Colombo 07. 

No 18 & 20, Sama Mawatha, 
Borelesgamuwa  Land & Building  Revalued  Land -P 20.00  Building - Sqf 5,155 

No 29A, Jayathilaka Mawatha, Panadura  Land & Building  Revalued  Land- R 1, P 2.16   Building - Sqf 33,272

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended 31 March 2017
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 Company

Property Extent
Method of  
valuation

Effective 
date of 
valuation Property valuer

Signi�cant 
unobservable 
inputs

Sensitivity of 
fair value to 
unobservable 
inputs

Land and Buildings

A 1, R 3, 
P 27.58  
Buildings - Sqf 
14,491 

Comparison 
Method/ DRC 
Method

28th 
February 
2017

G.W.G. Abeygunawardene, 
Chartered Valuation Surveyor

Estimated 
price per 
perch LKR 13 
to 13.5 Mn 
& estimated  
price per 
Square foot- 
LKR 5,500 to 
LKR 5,750

Positively 
correlated

No. 10, Ward Place, 
Colombo 07. 

No. 15, C.W.W. 
Kannangara Mawatha, 
Colombo 07. 

No. 21/5, 
C.W.W.Kannangara 
Mawatha, Colombo 07. 

No.25/2 ,3,5,6 & 
6B,C.W.W. Kannangara 
Mawatha, Colombo 07. 

No.17,17/1,17/1A,19 
& 19A, C.W.W. 
Kannangara Mawatha, 
Colombo 07. 

No. 25, C.W.W. 
Kannangara Mawatha, 
Colombo 07. 

No 29A, Jayathilaka 
Mawatha, Panadura 

Land- R 1, 
P 2.16   
Building - Sqf 
33,272 

Comparison 
Method/ DRC 
Method

28th 
February 
2017

G.W.G. Abeygunawardene, 
Chartered Valuation Surveyor

Estimated 
price per 
perch LKR 
1.6 Mn & 
estimated  
price per 
Square foot- 
LKR 2500 to 
LKR 5,000

Positively 
correlated

No 18 & 20, Sama 
Mawatha, Boralesgamuwa 

Land -P 20.00  
Building - Sqf 
5,155

Comparison 
Method/ DRC 
Method

28th 
February 
2017

G.W.G. Abeygunawardene, 
Chartered Valuation Surveyor

Estimated 
price per 
perch LKR 
1.2 Mn & 
estimated  
price per 
Square foot- 
LKR 4500 to 
LKR 5,000

Positively 
correlated
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10 PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT (CONTD..) 

10.2 Group

Balance Balance

As at Acquisitions/ Reclassi�ed / Disposals / Write-offs / As at 

1-Apr-16 Transfers Revaluation Transfers Discarded 31-Mar-17

LKR LKR LKR LKR  LKR LKR

10.2.1 Gross carrying amounts

At cost

Landscaping  884,560  -    -    -    -    884,560 

Building  -    56,722,258  -    (56,722,258)  -    -   

Building - leasehold  317,254,379  4,295,256  -    (20,523,013)  -    301,026,622 

Of�ce equipment  220,038,969  31,214,089  -    (16,181,222)  (142,438)  234,929,398 

Fixtures - other  40,907,653  35,000  -    (18,679,419)  -    22,263,234 

Fixtures - air conditions  18,795,181  229,640  -    (1,608,548)  -    17,416,273 

Furniture  307,626,865  16,662,894  -    (21,950,491)  (204,835)  302,134,433 

Computer equipments  100,886,276  8,367,965  -    (474,841)  -    108,779,400 

Of�ce equipment- other  73,633,344  3,813,718  -    (1,931,044)  -    75,516,018 

Shop �ttings - �xtures  449,003,540  63,010,779  -    (45,396,237)  -    466,618,082 

Shop �ttings - mobiles  21,271,738  20,000  -    (6,504,723)  -    14,787,015 

Motor vehicles  20,600,240  8,687,597  -    (2,455,373)  -    26,832,464 

Motor vehicles -lease  4,718,750  -    -    -    -    4,718,750 

 1,575,621,495  193,059,196  -    (192,427,169)  (347,273)  1,575,906,249 

At valuation

Land  4,061,650,000  -    375,350,000  -    -    4,437,000,000 

Building  310,960,750  -    52,816,992  56,722,258  -    420,500,000 

 4,372,610,750  -    428,166,992  56,722,258  -    4,857,500,000 

Balance Balance

As at Incurred during Reclassi�ed / Disposals / Write-offs / As at

1-Apr-16 the year Revaluation Transfers Discarded 31-Mar-17

LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR

10.2.2 In the Course of 
Constructions

Capital work in progress  135,591,456  190,137,462  -    (146,699,847)  (3,272,438)  175,756,633 

Total gross carrying 

amount 135,591,456  190,137,462  -    (146,699,847)  (3,272,438) 175,756,633 

Total  6,083,823,701  383,196,658  428,166,992  (282,404,758)  (3,619,711)  6,609,162,882 

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended 31 March 2017
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Balance Balance

as at Acquisitions/ Charge for Disposals /  Write-offs / As at 

1-Apr-16 Transfers the year Transfers  Discarded 31-Mar-17

LKR LKR LKR LKR  LKR LKR

10.2.3 Depreciation 
At Cost
Landscaping  884,560  -    -    -    -    884,560 
Building  -    -    1,418,056  (1,418,056)  -    -   
Building - leasehold  137,830,214  -    36,579,844  (4,902,991)  -    169,507,066 
Of�ce equipment  119,679,004  -    22,672,355  (12,373,206)  (47,724)  129,930,429 
Fixtures - other  38,416,523  -    1,091,673  (18,219,153)  -    21,289,043 
Fixtures - air conditions  12,867,032  -    631,431  (1,608,548)  -    11,889,915 
Furniture  116,203,972  -    34,326,604  (14,224,839)  (57,131)  136,248,606 
Computer equipments  58,650,088  -    15,173,436  (275,524)  -    73,548,000 
Of�ce equipment- other  20,410,291  -    7,562,379  (1,174,401)  -    26,798,270 
Shop �ttings - �xtures  258,056,851  -    73,590,379  (35,432,492)  -    296,214,738 
Shop �ttings - mobiles  16,463,357  -    871,561  (5,446,069)  -    11,888,849 
Motor vehicles  13,559,321  -    3,484,138  (2,455,374)  -    14,588,085 
Motor vehicles -lease  4,718,750  -    -    -    -    4,718,750 

 797,739,963  -    197,401,856  (97,530,653)  (104,855)  897,506,311 
At valuation
Building  850,245  -    12,041,112  (12,891,357)  -    -   

 850,245  -    12,041,112  (12,891,357)  -   

Total  798,590,208  -    209,442,968  (110,422,010)  (104,855)  897,506,311 

 Group    

2017 2016
LKR  LKR 

10.2.4 Net Book Value 
At Cost
Building  -    -   
Building - leasehold  131,519,556  179,424,165 
Of�ce equipment  104,998,969  100,359,965 
Fixtures - other  974,191  2,491,130 
Fixtures - air conditions  5,526,358  5,928,149 
Furniture  165,885,827  191,422,893 
Computer equipments  35,231,400  42,236,188 
Of�ce equipment- other  48,717,748  53,223,053 
Shop �ttings - �xtures  170,403,344  190,946,689 
Shop �ttings - mobiles  2,898,166  4,808,381 
Motor vehicles  12,244,379  7,040,919 

 678,399,938  777,881,532 

At valuation
Land  4,437,000,000  4,061,650,000 

Building  420,500,000  310,110,505 

 4,857,500,000  4,371,760,505 
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10 PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT (CONTD..) 

10.2 Group

10.2.5 In the course of constructions
Capital work in progress  175,756,633  135,591,456 
Total gross carrying amount  175,756,633  135,591,456 

Total  5,711,656,571  5,285,233,493 

10.2.6 The company uses the revaluation model for measurement of land and buildings. The company engaged Chartered Valuer      
M/S G.W.G. Abeygunawardene an accredited independent valuer, to determine the fair value of its land and buildings. Fair 
value is determined by reference to market-based evidence. Valuations are based on comparison method/DRC method, adjusted 
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the speci�c property. The date of the most recent revaluation was on 
31st March 2017. The previous revaluation was on 31 March 2016.

Cumulative

depreciation Net carrying Net carrying
If assets were amount amount

Class of asset Cost carried at cost 2017 2016

LKR LKR LKR LKR

 Building  272,663,940  58,022,552  214,641,388  164,815,254 

 Land  2,299,295,223  -    2,299,295,223  1,938,425,223 

10.2.7 Land and buildings with a carrying value of Rs. 5,751,000,000  (2016 - Rs. 4,936,358,692/= ) have been pledged as 
security for term loans obtained, details of which are disclosed in Note 26.

10.2.8 Property pant and equipments included fully depreciated assets having a gross carrying amount of Rs. 310,575,940 /- (2016- 
Rs.305,851,610/- )

10.2.9  The extent and the  location of the entity’s land and buildings (Group) 

Address  Land/ Building  Valuation Extent 

No. 10, Ward Place, Colombo 07. 

 Land & Building  Revalued 
Land - A 1, R 3, P 27.58                     
Buildings - Sqf 14,491 

No. 15, C.W.W. Kannangara Mawatha, 
Colombo 07. 

No. 21/5, C.W.W. Kannangara Mawatha, 
Colombo 07. 

No.25/2 ,3,5,6 & 6B, C.W.W. Kannangara 
Mawatha, Colombo 07. 

No.17,17/1,17/1A,19 & 19A, C.W.W. 
Kannangara Mawatha, Colombo 07. 

No. 25, C.W.W. Kannangara Mawatha, 
Colombo 07. 

No. 18 & 20, Sama Mawatha, Borelesgamuwa  Land & Building  Revalued Land - P 20.00  Building - Sqf 5,155 

No. 29A, Jayathilaka Mawatha, Panadura  Land & Building  Revalued Land - R 1, P 2.16   Building - Sqf 33,272 

No. 475/32, Kotte Road, Rajagiriya  Land & Building  Revalued Land - R 1, P 7.39  Bilding Sqft- 32,080 

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended 31 March 2017
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 Group

Property Extent
Method of  
valuation

Effective 
date of 
valuation Property valuer

Signi�cant 
unobservable inputs

Sensitivity of 
fair value to 
unobservable 
inputs

No.10, Ward Place, 
Colombo 07. 

A 1, R 3, 
P 27.58  
Buildings - Sqf 
14,491 

Comparison 
Method/ DRC 
Method

28th 
February 
2017

G.W.G. 
Abeygunawardene, 
Chartered Valuation 
Surveyor

Estimated price per 
perch LKR 13 to 13.5 
Mn & estimated  price 
per Square foot- LKR 
5,500 to LKR 5,750

Positively 
correlated

No.15, C.W.W. 
Kannangara Mawatha, 
Colombo 07. 

No.21/5, 
C.W.W.Kannangara 
Mawatha, Colombo 07. 

No.25/2 ,3,5,6 & 
6B,C.W.W. Kannangara 
Mawatha, Colombo 07. 

No.17,17/1,17/1A,19 & 
19A, C.W.W. Kannangara 
Mawatha, Colombo 07. 

No.25, C.W.W. 
Kannangara Mawatha, 
Colombo 07. 

No.29A, Jayathilaka 
Mawatha, Panadura

Land- R 1, 
P 2.16   
Building - Sqf 
33,272

Comparison 
Method/ DRC 
Method

28th 
February 
2017

G.W.G. 
Abeygunawardene, 
Chartered Valuation 
Surveyor

Estimated price per 
perch LKR 1.6 Mn & 
estimated  price per 
Square foot- LKR 2500 
to LKR 5,000

Positively 
correlated

No.18 & 20, Sama 
Mawatha, Boralesgamuwa

Land -P 20.00  
Building - Sqf 
5,155

Comparison 
Method/ DRC 
Method

28th 
February 
2017

G.W.G. 
Abeygunawardene, 
Chartered Valuation 
Surveyor

Estimated price per 
perch LKR 1.2 Mn & 
estimated  price per 
Square foot- LKR 4500 
to LKR 5,000

Positively 
correlated

No.475/32, Kotte Road, 
Rajagiriya 

 Land - R 1, P 
7.39  Bilding 
Sqft- 32,080 

Comparison 
Method/ DRC 
Method

28th 
February 
2017

G.W.G. 
Abeygunawardene, 
Chartered Valuation 
Surveyor

Estimated price per 
perch LKR 4.75 Mn 
& estmated  price per 
Square foot- LKR 3000 
to LKR 6,250

Positively 
correlated
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11 INVESTMENT PROPERTY (GROUP)

Balance Balance

As at Acquisitions/ Adjustment for Disposals / Write-offs / As at 

1-Apr-16 Transfers fair value Transfers Impairment 31-Mar-17

LKR LKR LKR LKR  LKR LKR

Gross carrying 
amounts

Land  599,480,000  -    341,520,000  -    -    941,000,000 

Total cost of 
investment 
property  599,480,000  -    341,520,000  -    -    941,000,000 

2017 2016

 LKR  LKR 

Net book value

At revaluation

Land  941,000,000  599,480,000 

Total carrying amount of investment property  941,000,000  599,480,000

11.1 The extent and the  location of the entity’s land and buildings (Group)       

Property Extent
Method of  
valuation

Effective date 
of valuation Property valuer

Signi�cant 
unobservable 
inputs

Sensitivity of 
fair value to 
unobservable 
inputs

No 197/C, 
Kalapaluwawa Road & 
No 271, Kaduwela Road, 
Thalangama 

A 1-R 1-P 
35.24

Open market 
value method

31st March 
2017

G W G 
Abeygunawardene, 
Chartered Valuation 
Surveyor

Estimated price 
per perch LKR 
4 Mn( 2Mn to 
3Mn in 2016)

Possitively 
correlated

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended 31 March 2017
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12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

12.1 Group

Balance Balance

As at Acquisitions/ Reclassi�ed / Disposals / Write-offs / As at 

1-Apr-16 Transfers Revaluation Transfers Discarded 31-Mar-17

LKR LKR LKR LKR  LKR LKR

12.1.1 Gross carrying 
amounts

At cost

Computer software  133,293,807  -    -    -    -    133,293,807 

Brand names  672,974,584  -    -    -    -    672,974,584 

 806,268,391  -    -    -    -    806,268,391 

       

Balance Balance

As at Acquisitions/ Charge for Disposals /  Write-offs / As at 

1-Apr-16 Transfers the year Transfers  Discarded 31-Mar-17

LKR LKR LKR LKR  LKR LKR

12.1.2 Amortization

At cost

Computer software  82,597,545  -    33,565,144  -    -    116,162,689 

Brand names  30,216,574  -    83,916,576  -    -    114,133,150 

 112,814,119  -    117,481,720  -    -    230,295,839 
  

2017 2016

12.1.3 Net book value
Computer software  17,131,118  50,696,262 

Brand names  558,841,434  642,758,010 

 575,972,552  693,454,272 

12.1.4 Intangible Assets included fully amortised assets having a gross carrying amount of Rs. 41,104,400 /- (2016- 
Rs.41,104,400/- ) 

12.2 Goodwill

 This balance represent the Goodwill computed on the aqusition of Softlogic Brands (Pvt) Limited on 21st March 2015

 Impairment of goodwill

 The recoverable amounts of the CGU has been determined based on the fair value,less cost to sell or the value in use (VIU)   
calculation. value in use calculated based on the discounted cash �ows of CGU. Cash �ows are derived from the budget for the   
next �ve years without considering the signi�cunt future investments. Key Budget assumptions used for the budget are as follows.

 “Gross Margin- Actual gross margins achieved in the year preceding the budgeted year adjusted for projected market condition”  
Discount Rate- Current weighted average cost of funds In�ation Rate -in�ation rate based on projected economic conditions.
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                            Company                                Group

2017 2016 2017 2016

% Holding LKR LKR LKR LKR

13 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

Odel Properties (Pvt) Ltd. 100%  108,100,000  108,100,000  -    -   

Odel Information Technology 
Services (Pvt) Ltd 100%  10  10  -    -   

Odel Lanka (Pvt) Ltd 100%  270,000,020  270,000,020  -    -   

Odel Apparels (Pvt) Ltd 100%  1,000  1,000  -    -   

BSL International (Pvt) Ltd 100%  1,000,000  1,000,000  -    -   

Green�eld Trading (Pvt) Ltd 100%  10  10  -    -   

Softlogic Brands (Pvt) Ltd 100%  1,719,288,000  1,719,288,000  -    -   

 2,098,389,040  2,098,389,040  -    -   

Impairment of investment  (1,000,000)  (1,000,000)  -    -   

 2,097,389,040  2,097,389,040  -    -   

                            Company                                Group

2017 2016 2017 2016

LKR LKR LKR LKR

14 INVENTORIES

Finished Goods  1,765,060,264  1,435,211,271  2,439,943,276  1,954,970,532 

Goods in Transit  7,593,637  28,492,697  20,767,292  42,604,743 

Provision for obsolete and slow moving items  (35,619,027)  (57,233,823)  (76,483,916)  (61,527,896)

Total inventories at the lower of cost and NRV  1,737,034,874  1,406,470,145  2,384,226,652  1,936,047,379 

                            Company                                Group

2017 2016 2017 2016

LKR LKR LKR LKR

15 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Financial Assets - Loans & Receivables

Trade Debtors  44,396,299  35,872,528  47,644,685  35,225,100 

Other Debtors  44,960,635  54,176,447  55,080,793  61,547,222 

 89,356,934  90,048,975  102,725,478  96,772,322 

Non Financial Assets

Deposits & Prepayments  609,826,140  434,616,050  685,770,415  506,930,715 

 699,183,074  524,665,025  788,495,893  603,703,037 

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended 31 March 2017
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                            Company                                Group

2017 2016 2017 2016

LKR LKR LKR LKR

15.1 Trade debtors aging analysis

Aging brakets (Days)

0 - 30  26,804,999  27,469,926  30,053,385  26,662,524 

31- 60  7,564,853  4,391,203  7,564,853  4,391,203 

61- 90  2,910,559  1,088,237  2,910,559  1,088,237 

91-120  7,115,888  1,060,757  7,115,888  1,174,286 

Over 120  -    1,862,406  -    1,908,851 

Total  44,396,299  35,872,528  47,644,685  35,225,100 

                            Company                                Group

2017 2016 2017 2016

LKR LKR LKR LKR

16 DEFERRED LIABILITY

16.1 Deferred Revenue

Loyalty programe

At 1 April  7,576,418  5,891,768  7,576,418  5,891,768 

Deferred during the period  17,290,473  14,360,727  17,290,473  14,360,727 

Released to the income statement  (16,018,478)  (12,676,077)  (16,018,478)  (12,676,077)

At 31 March  8,848,413  7,576,418  8,848,413  7,576,418 

16.2 Deferred Expenditure

Operating lease

At 1 April  39,855,099  41,582,300  47,659,024  41,582,300 

Charged to the income statement  9,480,908  (1,727,201)  10,324,623  6,076,724 

At 31 March  49,336,007  39,855,099  57,983,647  47,659,024 

Total Deferred Liability  58,184,420  47,431,517  66,832,060  55,235,442 
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                            Company                                Group

2017 2016 2017 2016

LKR LKR LKR LKR

17 AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES

Amount due from subsidiary companies

Odel Properties (Pvt.) Ltd.  94,635,380  -    -    -   

Odel Apparels (Pvt) Ltd  27,941,850  16,979,921  -    -   

Odel Lanka (Pvt) Ltd  133,740,792  121,354,388  -    -   

Green�eld Trading (Pvt) Ltd  -    442,716  -    -   

BSL International (Pvt) Ltd  -    6,337,657  -    -   

Softlogic Brands (Pvt) Ltd  -    198,346,433  -    -   

 256,318,022  343,461,115  -    -   

Less: Provision for doubtful debt - Odel Lanka  (65,532,013)  (65,532,013)  -    -   

Less: Provision for doubtful debt - BSL  -    (4,209,748)  -    -   

 190,786,009  273,719,354  -    -   

Amount due from Other companies

Softlogic Communications Services (Pvt) Ltd  -    350,480  -    350,480 

Softlogic Retail (Pvt) Ltd  13,176,670  3,969,482  13,330,299  46,288,142 

Softlogic Mobile Distribution (Pvt) Ltd  -    -    767,654  1,418,191 

Softlogic BPO Services (Pvt) Ltd  39,000,000  39,000,000  39,000,000  39,000,000 

Softlogic Holdings PLC  72,819  -    72,819  -   

Softlogic Restaurants (Pvt) Ltd  1,283,707  -    1,283,707  -   

 53,533,196  43,319,962  54,454,479  87,056,813 

 244,319,205  317,039,316  54,454,479  87,056,813 

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended 31 March 2017
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18 INTEREST BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS (CONTD..)

18.3 Terms of the loan

Lending 
institution Year

Loan 
amount

Nature of 
facility Security

Repayment 
term

Loan Balance 
as at 31 March 

2017

Loan Balance 
as at                    

31 March 2016

BOC 2012/2013 275Mn Medium 
term loan 

Property at 475/32, 
Kotte Road, Rajagiriya 6 Years  41,249,966  96,249,974 

HNB 2011/2012 200Mn

Medium 
term loan 

Property at 
271-271F,Kaduwala 
Road, Thalangama, 
Battaramulla owned by 
Odel Lanka (Pvt) Ltd 

Over a period 
of 06 years 
in 59 equal 
monthly 
instalments  -    25,800,000 

DFCC Bank 2012/2013 96Mn

Medium 
term loan 

Property at 15, C.W.W 
Kannangara Mw. 
Colombo 07 and 29 
A,Jayathilaka Mawatha 
Panadura 

84 equal 
monthly 
instalments 
(capital) after a 
grace period of 
12 months   29,714,240  43,428,532 

Commercial Bank 2015 / 2016 500Mn Medium 
term loan 

Credit card & debit card 
sales except for BIA 5 Years  324,986,000  424,994,000 

Commercial Bank 2016 / 2017 500Mn Medium 
term loan 

Credit card & debit card 
sales except for BIA 3 Years  361,110,000 

HNB 2014 / 2015 450Mn

Short term 
Loan Stock in trade 

Maximum 
of 90 days 
subject to roll 
over  69,000,000  450,000,000 

Seylan Bank 2015 / 2016 500Mn

Short term 
Loan None 

Maximum 
of 90 days 
subject to roll 
over  391,000,000  445,000,000 

Union Bank 2014/2015 450Mn Short term 
Loan 

Property at No 10, Ward 
Place, Colombo 7. Monthly  231,410,676  -   

DFCC Bank 2014/2015 239Mn Short term 
Loan Stock in trade Monthly  165,000,000  -   

BOC 2016/2017 200Mn Short term 
Loan None On demand   200,000,000  -  

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended 31 March 2017



101

                            Company                                Group

2017 2016 2017 2016

LKR LKR LKR LKR

19 RETIREMENT BENEFIT LIABILITY

De�ned Bene�t Plan Costs - Gratuity     

As at the beginning of the year  33,096,316  47,579,296  41,658,733  59,510,335 

Charge for the year 19.1  9,055,379  11,799,226  11,718,059  15,338,600 

Payment made during the year  (3,527,201)  (6,618,537)  (4,777,380)  (7,354,643)

Actuarial loss/ (Gain) on obligation  958,783  (19,663,669)  (772,583)  (25,835,558)

De�ned Bene�t Obligation as at the 
end of the year  39,583,277  33,096,316  47,826,823  41,658,733 

19.1 Charge for the year

Current service cost  5,414,784  7,707,407  7,135,600  10,215,409 

Interest cost  3,640,595  4,091,819  4,582,459  5,123,191 

 9,055,379  11,799,226  11,718,059  15,338,600 

19.2 The Retirement bene�t liability of Odel PLC is valued by Mr Piyal Goonatilleke, who is a Fellow Member of the Society of 
Actuaries (USA) and a Member of the American Academy of Actuaries. De�ned liability is valued as at 31st March 2017 and the 
principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows.

                            Company                                Group

2017 2016 2017 2016

Discount rate 12.75% 11.00% 12.75% & 12.96% 11.00%

Salary increases 8.0% 7.5% 8.0% 7.5%

Staff turnover

Age Turnover Turnover Turnover Turnover

20 30% 30% 30% 30%

25 30% 30% 30% 30%

30 20% 20% 20% 20%

35 10% 10% 10% 10%

40 5% 5% 5% 5%

45 2% 2% 2% 2%

Retirement Age  55 Years  55 Years  55 Years  55 Years 

Weighted average duration (years) of 
de�ne bene�t obligation 7 Years 6.6 Years 7 & 10.7 Years 6.6 & 12 Years
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19.3 Sensitivity of Assumptions Employed in Actuarial Valuation

 The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the key assumptions employed with all other 
variables held constant in the employment bene�t liability measurement. 

 The sensitivity of the Comprehensive Income Statement and the Statement of Financial Position is the effect of the assumed changes 
in discount rate and salary increment rate on the pro�t & loss and employment bene�t obligation for the year.

Assumptions Discount rate Salary increment rate

1% Increase 1% Decrease 1% Increase 1% Decrease

Impact on de�ned bene�t obligation - Company  (2,791,649)  3,175,244  3,209,266  (2,863,796)

Impact on de�ned bene�t obligation - Group  (3,568,312)  4,069,368  4,115,550  (3,662,972)

19.4 Maturity Analysis

Year Retirement Term Death Disab Total

2017/2018  665,454  5,132,546  87,059  147,871  6,032,930 

2018/2019  -    5,395,265  106,837  183,009  5,685,111 

2019/2020  3,417,626  5,530,837  137,322  237,756  9,323,541 

2020/2021  3,446,741  5,436,352  173,354  291,716  9,348,163 

2021/2022  6,588,100  5,570,752  212,846  350,644  12,722,342 

2022/2023  2,446,580  5,459,944  243,570  402,606  8,552,700 

2023/2024  9,061,526  4,949,850  295,301  487,343  14,794,020 

2024/2025  5,507,705  4,444,205  314,572  533,641  10,800,123 

2025/2026  9,464,950  3,982,311  359,885  628,014  14,435,160 

2026/2027  11,568,132  3,518,258  558,176  997,370  16,641,936 

2016/2017 Actual Bene�t Payout  3,527,201

 The expected bene�ts are estimated based on the same assumptions used to measure the company’s bene�t obligation at the end 
of the year and include bene�ts attributable to estimated future employee service.

                            Company                                Group

2017 2016 2017 2016

LKR LKR LKR LKR

20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Financial Libilities

Trade payables  380,665,058  345,258,042  458,236,840  367,264,279 

Sundry creditors  131,365,876  125,632,408  133,776,482  170,160,708 

Accrued expenses  116,567,784  151,865,617  148,890,263  160,963,664 

Unredeemed gift voucher liability  104,807,132  90,280,208  104,807,132  90,280,208 

Deposits & advances  8,566,018  1,867,051  8,566,018  1,867,051 

 741,971,868  714,903,327  854,276,735  790,535,910 

Non Financial Liabilities

Tax & accrued expenses  6,431,220  10,173,911  21,625,463  8,960,042 

 748,403,088  725,077,238  875,902,198  799,495,952 

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended 31 March 2017
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                            Company                                Group

2017 2016 2017 2016

LKR LKR LKR LKR

21 AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES

Amount due to subsidiary companies

Odel Properties (Pvt) Ltd  -    3,119,545  -    -   

Odel Information Technology Services (Pvt) Ltd  51,037,841  106,867,991  -    -   

Softlogic Brands (Pvt) Ltd  125,674,650  350,556,144  -    -   

 176,712,491  460,543,680  -    -   

Amount due to other companies

Softlogic Retails (Pvt) Ltd  -    -    -    308,734,798 

Softlogic Corporate Services (Pvt) Ltd  320,485  333,000  341,060  440,691 

Softlogic Furniture (Pvt) Ltd  2,254  -    2,254  -   

Softlogic Holdings PLC  -    7,128,915  254,959  16,399,919 

Softlogic Information Technologies Ltd  -    -    -    1,181,097 

Softlogic Restaurants (Pvt) Ltd  -    -    178,670  26,791 

Softlogic Communications (Pvt) Ltd  2,028  627,010  30,922  645,914 

Softlogic International (Pvt) Ltd  -    80,000  -    80,000 

Softlogic Retail One (Pvt) Ltd  -    -    70,792  52,494 

Nextage (Pvt) Ltd  144,779  -    144,779  -   

 469,546  8,168,925  1,023,436  327,561,704 

 177,182,037  468,712,605  1,023,436  327,561,704 

                            Company                                Group

2017 2016 2017 2016

LKR LKR LKR LKR

22 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents

22.1 Favourable cash & cash equivalents balance Cash 
& bank balances  38,787,283  61,972,516  82,363,158  83,208,435 

22.2 Unfavourable cash & cash equivalents balance 
Bank overdraft  (552,737,970)  (250,693,156)  (560,391,026)  (262,724,223)

 (513,950,687)  (188,720,640)  (478,027,868)  (179,515,788)

                2017                  2016

NUMBER LKR NUMBER LKR

23 STATED  CAPITAL 

Fully paid ordinary shares  272,129,431  2,795,513,620  272,129,431  2,795,513,620 

 272,129,431  2,795,513,620  272,129,431  2,795,513,620 
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24 FINANCIAL ASSETS & LIABILITIES - FAIR VALUES

24.1 The fair value of the �nancial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a 
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

 The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

 Investment in unit trust, cash and short-term deposits, staff loans, refundable deposits, trade receivables, trade payables, amount 
due to/from related party and other current liabilities approximate their carrying amounts.

 The fair value of, obligations under �nance leases, is estimated by discounting future cash �ows using rates currently available for 
debt on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

 The fair value of loans from bank approximate the carrying value as loans have been obtained on �oating rates.

24.2 Fair value hierarchy

 The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of assets and liabilities by valuation technique:

 Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

 Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs that have a signi�cant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly 
or indirectly

 Level 3: techniques that use inputs that have a signi�cant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market 
data

 As at 31 March 2017, the Group held the following assets carried at fair value in the statement of �nancial position:

Assets measured at fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

LKR LKR LKR LKR

Financial assets at fair value through pro�t and loss

Investment in unit trust  248,959  248,959  -    -   

 -    -   

Non-Financial Assets

Free hold lands  4,437,000,000  -    -    4,437,000,000 

Free hold buildings  420,500,000  -    -    420,500,000 

Investment Property  941,000,000  -    -    941,000,000

24.3 Unobservable inputs used in mesuring the fair value of non-�nancial assets

 Note number 10.1.9 , 10.2.9 and 11.1 sets out information about signi�cant unobservable inputs used as at 31st March 2016 in mesuring  
 non-�nancial assets categorised as level 3 in the fair value hierarchy

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended 31 March 2017
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25 EARNINGS PER SHARE

 Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net pro�t / (loss) for the year attributable to equity holders of parent by 
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding during the year and the previous year are adjusted for events, that have changed the number of ordinary shares 
outstanding, without a corresponding change in the resources.

 The following re�ects the income and share data used in the basic earning per share computations

2017 2016

LKR LKR

Amounts used as the numerators:

Net pro�t  464,857,949  255,828,458 

Net pro�t attributable to ordinary shareholders for basic earnings per share  464,857,949  255,828,458 

Number of ordinary shares used as denominators:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue applicable to basic earnings per share  272,129,431  272,129,431 

Adjusted weighted average number of ordinary shares applicable to basic earnings per share  272,129,431  272,129,431

26 ASSETS PLEDGED - (COMPANY/GROUP)

 The following assets have been pledged as security for liabilities.

Nature of asset Mortgage type Bank 2016 2015 Address

Land & bulding Primary DFCC  41Mn  41Mn No. 15, C.W.W. Kannangara Mawatha, Colombo 7

Land & bulding Primary DFCC  55Mn  55Mn No 29A, Jayathilaka Mawatha, Panadura

Land & building Primary BOC  275Mn  275Mn 
No. 475/32, Kotte Road, Rajagiriya. Owned by Odel 
Properties (Pvt) Ltd

Land & building Primary HNB  200Mn  200Mn 
No 271-271F, Kaduwala Road, Thalangama, 
Battaramulla. owned by Odel Lanka (Pvt) Ltd

Stock & debts Primary Concurrent Sampath  150Mn  150Mn 

Stock & debts Primary Concurrent HNB  475Mn  400Mn 

Stock & debts Primary Concurrent DFCC  210Mn  210Mn 

Stock & debts Primary Concurrent NTB  100Mn  100Mn 

27 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

 There were no signi�cant capital commitments and contingent liabilities as of the Balance sheet date except for the operating lease 
commitments stated in the note 30 to this �nancial statements and the  letter of credits executed for LKR 163,806,993 /= (USD 
1,104,798).
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                            Company                                Group

2017 2016 2017 2016

LKR LKR LKR LKR

28 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial assets at fair value through pro�t and loss

Investment in unit trust  248,959  224,298  248,959  224,298 

Loans and receivables

Staff loan  1,009,402  2,779,318  1,009,403  2,779,318 

Refundable deposit  60,125,669  57,121,823  77,880,859  72,351,943 

 61,384,030  60,125,439  79,139,221  75,355,559 

Total current  8,973,164  17,655,709  8,973,164  23,793,709 

Total Non current  52,410,866  42,469,730  70,166,057  51,561,850 

29 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

 The �nancial statements include the �nancial statements of the Group and the Subsidiaries listed in the

 following table:

           % of equity interest 

Name 2017 2016

Odel Apparels (Pvt) Ltd 100% 100%

Odel Information Technology Services ( Pvt) Ltd 100% 100%

Odel Properties ( Pvt) Ltd 100% 100%

Odel Lanka ( Pvt) Ltd 100% 100%

BSL International (Pvt) Ltd 100% 100%

Softlogic Brands (Pvt) Ltd 100% 100%

Green�eld Trading (Pvt) Ltd 100% 100%

 The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with the above related parties for the 
relevant �nancial year and the information regarding outstanding balances as at 31 March  2017 and 2016

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended 31 March 2017
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29.1 Transaction with the parent Entity 

                 Fellow Subsidiaries 

2017 2016

 LKR  LKR 

Nature of Transaction

Balance as at 1 April  (Before Provision)  (117,082,565)  1,150,921,860 

Loan Granted-Net  (280,834,584)  288,034,275 

Purchase of Goods/Services-Net  (371,176,935)  (651,425,073)

Investment in equity shares  -    (1,119,288,000)

Settlement of liabilities on behalf of the Company  848,699,616  214,674,373 

Balance as at 31 March (Before Provision)  79,605,531  (117,082,565)

             Other Related Parties 

2017 2016

 LKR  LKR 

Nature of Transaction

Balance as at 1 April  (Before Provision)  35,151,037  -   

Loan Granted/Advance Paid  289,100,000  42,326,689 

Purchase of Goods/Services  (95,896,772)  (89,390,180)

Settlements  (175,290,615)  82,214,528 

Balance as at 31 March (Before Provision)  53,063,650  35,151,037 

                Other Related Parties 

Transaction with Subsidiary entities 2017 2016

 LKR  LKR 

Nature of Transaction

Balance as at 1 April   (274,670,849)  (251,118,155)

Loan (Granted)/ Settlements- Net  295,620,675  (15,539,885)

Purchase of Goods/Services-Net  (37,582,915)  (8,012,810)

Service Income  12,795,000  -   

Settlement of liabilities on behalf of the Company  4,205,480  -   

Balance as at 31 March  367,391  (274,670,849)

 Transactions with ultimate holding company-Softlogc Holding PLC

 Loan of Rs.289,100,000/= has been obtained from Softlogic Holding PLC and it was settled during the year and the interest 
of Rs.3,752,364/=has been charged by the parent. Further Rs 46,589,298/= worth of services has been obtained during the 
year.

 Above balances are included in the amount due to / due from related parties. Balance  outstanding as at the year end is diclosed 
in the Note 17 and 21 to the �nancial statements

 All trading transactions are at the arms length and interest has been charged on loans granted at the rate of AWPLR + 1%. All 
other amounts are due to/from on demand
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29.2 Transactions with Key Management Personnel of the Company or its parent

 The key management personnel of the Company/Group are the members of its Board of Directors and  that of its parent.

a) Key Management Personnel Compensation 

2017 2016

 LKR  LKR 

Short-term employee bene�ts  3,600,000  3,675,000 

Post-employment bene�ts  -    -   

Other long term bene�ts  -    -   

Termination bene�t  -    -   

Share based payments  -    -   

 3,600,000  3,675,000

30 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS - GROUP

 The Group has entered into commercial leases for properties to operate its outlet network. These leases have an average life of 
between 4 and 8 years. There are no restrictions placed upon the Group by entering into these leases.

 Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases  are as follows:

2017 2016

 LKR  LKR 

Within one year  294,028,289  177,208,804 

After one year but not more than �ve years  924,501,023  460,001,833 

More than �ve years  430,779,265  247,340,130 

 1,649,308,578  884,550,767 

 Operating lease commitments - Company

 Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases  are as follows:

2017 2016

 LKR  LKR 

Within one year  205,666,366  177,208,804 

After one year but not more than �ve years  623,476,586  460,001,833 

More than �ve years  280,249,710  247,340,130 

 1,109,392,662  884,550,767 

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended 31 March 2017
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2017 2016

 LKR  LKR 

31 DIVIDENDS PAID AND PROPOSED

Declared and paid during the year:

Dividends on ordinary shares:

Final dividend for 2017: 40 cents per share (2016: 30 cents per share)  108,851,772  81,638,829 

Interim dividend for 2017: 11 cents per share (2016: 0 cents per share)  29,934,237  -   

 138,786,010  81,638,829 

32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

 The Group’s principal �nancial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings and trade and other payables. The main purpose of these 
�nancial liabilities is to �nance the Group’s operations.

 The Group has loan and receivables, trade and other receivables, and cash and short-term deposits that are derived directly from 
its operations.

 The Group’s senior management oversees the management of the �nancial risks. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees 
policies for managing each of these risks which are summarized below.

 Interest rate risk

 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash �ows of a �nancial instrument will �uctuate because of changes in market 
interest rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates arise due to the borrowings with �oating interest 
rates. The movement of rates are closely monitored and re�nancing options are available to manage this risk.
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33 INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY

 The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and 
borrowings. With all other variables held constant, the Group’s pro�t before tax is affected through the impact on �oating rate 
borrowings, as follows:

Increase/decrease 
in basis points

Effect on pro�t 
before tax

2017

Loan interest +100  (21,226,567)

Loan interest -100  21,226,567 

2016

Loan interest +100  (15,919,344)

Loan interest -100  15,919,344 

 The assumed movement in basis points for interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable market environment, 
showing a signi�cantly higher volatility than in prior years.

 Credit risk

 Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under a �nancial instrument or customer contract, leading to 
a �nancial loss. The Group has minimal exposure to credit risk from operating activities due to nature of business. The risk from its 
�nancing activities, including deposits with banks and �nancial institutions is managed by dealing with institutions carrying high 
credit rating.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended 31 March 2017
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 The table below summarises the maturity pro�le of the Group’s �nancial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted gross 
payments.

33.2.1 Company

Year ended 31 March 2017 On demand
Less than 3 

months 3 to 12 months 1 to 5 years > 5 years Total

Interest-bearing loans and 
borrowings  -    1,161,748,799  287,571,016  481,867,196  -    1,931,187,011 
Bank overdrafts  552,737,970  -    -    -    -    552,737,970 
Trade and other payables  104,807,132  643,595,956  -    -    -    748,403,088 

 657,545,102  1,805,344,755  287,571,016  481,867,196  -    3,232,328,069

Year ended 31 March 2016 On demand
Less than 3 

months 3 to 12 months 1 to 5 years > 5 years Total

Interest-bearing loans and 
borrowings  -    968,961,024  182,762,803  463,756,733  -    1,615,480,560 
Bank overdrafts  250,693,156  -    -    -    -    250,693,156 
Trade and other payables  90,280,208  634,797,030  -    -    -    725,077,238 

 340,973,364  1,603,758,054  182,762,803  463,756,733  -    2,591,250,954 

33.2.2 Group

Year ended 31 March 2017 On demand
Less than 3 

months 3 to 12 months 1 to 5 years > 5 years Total

Interest-bearing loans and 
borrowings  -    1,167,287,355  287,571,016  481,867,196  -    1,936,725,567 
Bank overdrafts  560,391,026  -    -    -    -    560,391,026 
Trade and other payables  104,807,132  771,095,066  -    -    -    875,902,198 

 665,198,158  1,938,382,421  287,571,016  481,867,196  -    3,373,018,791 

Year ended 31 March 2016 On demand
Less than 3 

months 3 to 12 months 1 to 5 years > 5 years Total

Interest-bearing loans and 
borrowings  -    947,230,476  182,762,803  463,756,733  -   

 
1,593,750,012 

Bank Overdrafts  262,724,223  -    -    -    -    262,724,223 
Trade and other payables  90,280,208  709,215,744  -    -    -    799,495,952 

 353,004,431 1,656,446,220  182,762,803  463,756,733  -   2,655,970,187 

34 EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE 

 There have been no material events occurring after the balance sheet date that require adjustments to or disclosure in the �nancial 
statements execpt for the followings.

 ODEL PLC and its subsidiary, Softlogic Brands (Pvt) Ltd entered into a mutual agreement with Colombo City Center Partners (Pvt) 
Ltd to utilize a retail space of Sq. ft. 39,560 at the premises. An amount of Rs. 14,013,081/= has been paid to Colombo City 
Center on 7th June 2017 as an advance payment for the same.

 The Company invested Rs 10,000,000/= to form a new subsidiary company which is a fully owned subsidiary on 10th June 
2017 of which the business is to carry out a special project under the agreement with Board of Investment.
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Investor Information

The percentage of shares held by the public as at 31st March 2017 was 2.49% (2016 - 5.86%).  The number of public shareholders as 
at 31st March 2017 was 5,492 (2016 -5,858).

Distribution of Shareholding as at 31st March 2017

There were 5,492 Registered shareholders as at 31st March 2017.

No. of Shares held No. of  % of  Total  % of Total 

Shareholders  Shareholders  Holding   Holding 

 1  1,000  4,879  88.84  1,253,916  0.46 

 1,001  10,000  539  9.81  1,748,348  0.64 

 10,001  100,000  64  1.17  1,912,764  0.70 

 100,001  1,000,000  7  0.13  1,852,895  0.68 

 Over 1,000,000  3  0.05  265,361,508  97.51 

Total  5,492  100.00  272,129,431  100.00 

Analysis report of Shareholders as at 31st March 2017

Category No. of  % of  Total  % of Total 

Shareholders  Shareholders  Holding   Holding 

Individual  5,377  97.91  4,854,038  1.78 

Institutional  115  2.09  267,275,393  98.22 

Total  5,492  100.00  272,129,431  100.00 

Resident  5,466  99.53  271,843,299  99.89 

Non-resident  26  0.47  286,132  0.11 

Total  5,492  100.00  272,129,431  100.00

Share Trading Information

2016/2017 2015/2016

Highest (Rs.)  25.20  23.80 

Lowest (Rs.)  19.00  16.10 

Closing (Rs.)  25.00  21.70 

2016/2017 2015/2016

Dividend per share (Cents)  51  30 

Dividend pay Out (%)  30  32
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Twenty largest shareholders of the company as at 31st March 2017 are as follows.

No Name No of Shares Percentage %

1 Softlogic Retail (Pvt) Limited 179,129,739 65.83

2 Softlogic Holdings PLC 61,231,769 22.50

3 Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC/ Softlogic Retail (Pvt) Ltd 25,000,000 9.19

4 Mrs E.B Helga Anil Perera 527,000 0.19

5 First Capital Markets Limited / Mr I.P. Galhenage 325,000 0.12

6 Mercantile Investments and Finance PLC 300,000 0.11

7 Tangerine Tours (Pvt) Ltd 225,600 0.08

8 Bank of Ceylon No.1 Account 222,295 0.08

9 Asha Financial Services Limited/ Mr C.N Pakianathan 140,000 0.05

10 Pan Asia Banking Corporation PLC/ Mr R. Erle Rambukwelle 113,000 0.04

11 Mr N. Arjuna Samarakoon 100,000 0.04

12 Miss Neesha Harnam 99,800 0.04

13 Mr L.J.M Abeyratne 92,000 0.03

14 Waldock Mackenzie Limited/Dr H.S.D Soysa 90,000 0.03

15 Andaradeniya Estate (Pvt) Ltd 81,700 0.03

16 Mr Sarath Kusum Wickremesinghe 80,000 0.03

17 Mr A.M Weerasinghe 66,200 0.02

18 Bansei Securities Capital (Pvt) Ltd/ Mr M.A.U Gnanatilake 65,000 0.02

19 Mr Madura Supun Hiripitiya 53,500 0.02

20 Mr Dilip Sudhira Jayawickrama 50,000 0.02
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Notice of Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of 
Odel PLC will be held at the “Lavender Room” of Bandaranaike 
Memorial International Conference Hall (BMICH), Bauddhaloka 
Mawatha, Colombo 07  on Thursday the 7th day of September 
2017 at 10.30 a.m. for the following purposes:

1) To receive and consider the Annual Report of the Board of 
Directors and Financial Statements of the Company and of the 
Group for the year ended 31st March 2017 together with the 
Report of the Auditors thereon.

2) To ratify the Interim Dividend of Rs. 0.40 per share paid on 
3rd March 2017 as the Final Dividend for the year ended 
31st March 2017.

3) To re-appoint the retiring Auditors, Messrs Ernst & Young as 
Auditors of the Company for the ensuing year and to authorize 
the Directors to determine their remuneration.

4) To authorize the Directors to determine and make donations for 
the year ending 31st March 2018 and up to the date of the 
next Annual General Meeting.

By Order of the Board 

SOFTLOGIC CORPORATE SERVICES (PVT) LTD

(Sgd.)
Secretaries

04th Aug 2017 
Colombo

Note:

A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint 

a Proxy who need not be a member, to attend on behalf of him/her.  

The Form of Proxy is enclosed in this Report.

The completed Form of Proxy should be deposited at the Registered 

Of�ce of the Company, No. 475/32, Kotte Road, Rajagiriya not later 

than forty eight (48) hours before the time appointed for the holding of 

the meeting.
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Form of Proxy

*I/We ……………........………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

of ………………………………………........…………………………………………………………………… being *a member/ members 

of ODEL PLC, do hereby appoint ……………………………………………………………………………………..........……………………

…………………………………………………………..................… (holder of N.I.C. No. ……………………….........……….………) of

…………………………………………………………………………………… or (whom failing)

Mr A K Pathirag of Colombo (whom failing)

Dr S Selliah of Colombo (whom failing)

Mr H K Kaimal of Colombo (whom failing)

Mr R P Pathirana of Colombo (whom failing)

Dr I C R De Silva of Colombo   

as *my/our Proxy to represent *me/us and to speak and vote for *me/us on *my/our behalf at the ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
OF THE COMPANY to be held at the “Lavender Room”of Bandaranaike Memorial International Conference Hall (BMICH), Bauddhaloka 
Mawatha, Colombo 07 at 10.30 a.m. on the  7th day of September 2017 and at any adjournment thereof, and at every poll which 
may be taken in consequence thereof.

FOR AGAINST

1) To receive and consider the Annual Report of the Board of Directors and the Financial Statements of the 
Company and of the Group for the year ended 31st March 2017 together with the Report of the Auditors 
thereon.

2) To ratify the Interim Dividend of Rs. 0.40 per share paid on 3rd March 2017 as the Final Dividend for the 
year ended 31st March 2017.

3) To re-appoint Messrs Ernst & Young, as Auditors and to authorize the Directors to determine their 
remuneration.

4) To authorize the Directors to determine and make Donations.

..............................     .…………………………
*Signature/s      Date

Note:

1) *Please delete the inappropriate words.

2) Instructions as to completion are noted on the reverse hereof.



INSTRUCTIONS AS TO COMPLETION

1. Kindly perfect the Form of Proxy after �lling in legibly your full name, 

address and the National Identity Card number and signing in the 

space provided and �lling in the date of signature.

2. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to 

appoint a Proxy who need not be a member, to attend and vote on 

behalf of him.  Please indicate with an “X” in the boxes provided how 

your Proxy is to vote on each resolution.  If no indication is given, the 

Proxy in his discretion will vote as he thinks �t.

3. If the Form of Proxy is signed by an Attorney, the relevant Power of 

Attorney should also accompany the completed Form of Proxy for 

registration, if such Power of Attorney has not already been registered 

with the Company.

4. In the case of a Corporate Member, the Form of Proxy must be executed 

in the manner prescribed by the Articles of Association/Statute.

5. The completed Form of Proxy should be deposited at the Registered 

Of�ce of the Company, No. 475/32, Kotte Road, Rajagiriya not later 

than forty eight (48) hours before the time appointed for the holding of 

the meeting.

 Please provide the following details:

Shareholder’s N.I.C./ Passport/ 

Company Registration No.

Shareholder’s Folio No. Number of Shares held Proxy Holder’s N.I.C. No. (if not a 

Director)






